


    

Agenda 03/25/2025 
 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is committed to compliance with both the Washington Law Against Discrimination and the 
Americans with Disabilities Act.  The District’s meetings are being held hybrid including remotely. See the information above to join a meeting.  If 
you have any questions, please contact Scott Deschenes, District General Manager, 206.429.3852. 

 

  
7. OLD BUSINESS  

7:10 
 
7:15 
 
7:20 
 
7:25 
 
7:30 
 
7:35 
 
7:40 

a. Insurance Changeover 
 

b. Land Acquisition Process Update 
 

c. Highline School District Meeting 
 
d. Current Grants Update 
 
e. 2025 Grant Application(s) 
 
f. Engineer of Record 
 
g. Employee Handbook 

 

 

7:45 

7:50 

7:55 

8:00 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Policy 531 Electric Funds Transfer (first touch) 
 

b. Bitwarden Password Software 
 
c. 50th Anniversary Celebration 

 
9. GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 

8:05 10. UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 

• To Be Determined, SAO Exit Meeting, ???, Location DMPMPD Office (22015 Marine Drive So. 
#2B, Des Moines, WA) 

• April 22, 2025 (Fourth Tuesday), Regular Board Meeting, 7:00 p.m., Location DMPMPD Office 
(22015 Marine Drive So. #2B, Des Moines, WA) 

 
For other future meetings, click here to visit our website’s governance page. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:  4a      Assigned to: District G.M.  Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under:    Proclamations                    Attachment:     Yes   
 
Subject: April is Adult Learn-to-Swim Month Proclamation 
 
Background/Summary:  
April is Adult Learn-to-Swim Month. This month is promoted by USA Swimming. The Mount 
Rainier Pool is promoting the importance of this month as parents that can swim are more likely 
to have their children participate in swim lessons and water safety programs. 
 
It is also: 
1. A fun family activity 
2. Increases safety 
3. Activity that strengthens family bonds 
4. Sets a positive example 
5. Helps overcome fears around water and opens access to other water-based activities 
6. It’s never too late to learn 
 
Currently, the Mount Rainier Pool hosts weekend and weekday lessons. There are about twenty 
spots in both classes. Our goal is to increase lesson opportunities for adults, especially with 
many people in our community having refugee, immigrant or social factors that did not offer 
these opportunities to many during their youth.  
 
Our goal is to expand services to better meet the needs of these member of our community. 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
 
Proposed Motion: I move that the Board of Commissioners of the Des Moines Pool 
Metropolitan Park District proclaim the month of April 2025 as “Adult Learn to Swim Month” to 
raise awareness about the importance of water safety, encourage adult swim education, and 
support efforts to reduce drowning risks among adults in our community. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes         No___X____ Date:   In Progress  
 
Three Touch Rule:                              Committee Review 
    ___03/25/2025_____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ___03/25/2025 ______ Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  No ___ x ____ Report back date: ___________  
 
Notes:  
- Proclamation 2025-01 “April is Adult Learn to Swim Month” 



 

 

DES MOINES POOL METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
APRIL IS ADULT LEARN-TO-SWIM MONTH 

PROCLOMATION 
 
 

WHEREAS, swimming is a lifelong skill that promotes health, fitness, and safety for individuals 
of all ages; and 

WHEREAS, adults often face barriers to swimming, including lack of access, confidence, and 
instruction, leading to lower participation rates among older age groups; and 

WHEREAS, adult swim programs provide opportunities for learning, fitness, recreation, and 
social engagement, fostering a stronger and healthier community; and 

WHEREAS, the Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is committed to promoting water 
safety, encouraging active lifestyles, and making swimming accessible to all members of the 
community; and 

WHEREAS, April marks the beginning of the spring and summer aquatic season, making it an 
ideal time to raise awareness and encourage adult participation in swimming for fitness, safety, 
and fun; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District hereby proclaims April 
as Adult Learn-to-Swim Month and encourages all adults in our community to take advantage 
of swim lessons, water exercise programs, lap swimming, and recreational swimming 
opportunities to improve their health, confidence, and water safety skills. 

Adoption: ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park 
District at an open meeting of such Board on the 25h of March 2025, the following Commissioners 
being present and voting. 
 
 
             __ 
   President Young     Commissioner Dusenbury 
 
              
   Commissioner Campbell    Commissioner Stender 
 
              
   Commissioner Thorell      District Clerk 



 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:  4b      Assigned to: District G.M.  Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under:    Announcements                 Attachment:     Yes   
 
Subject: Running for Local Office – Filing Week Begins May 5 
 
Background/Summary: I have attached an MRSC article that highlights the upcoming 
candidate filing period, beginning May 5, for individuals interested in running for local 
government positions in Washington State. It outlines the process for candidate filing, key 
deadlines, eligibility requirements, and the importance of understanding the responsibilities and 
time commitments associated with holding office. Additionally, the article emphasizes 
transparency, campaign finance reporting requirements through the Public Disclosure 
Commission (PDC), and provides valuable resources for prospective candidates, including links 
to official filing portals, guidelines, and election timelines. MRSC encourages community 
members considering public service to actively engage, ensuring informed, capable leadership 
in local government. 
 
The Mount Rainier Pool has three positions that are up for election: positions 3, 4 and 5. 
 
See website’s governance page and the attached article for more information. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
 
Proposed Motion: No motion. Informational only. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes         No___X____ Date:   In Progress  
 
Three Touch Rule:                              Committee Review 
    ___03/25/2025_____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ___03/25/2025___________ Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  No ___ x ____ Report back date: ___________  
 
Notes:  
- MRSC Insight Blog Article: Running for Local Office? Filing Week Begins May 5 (attached) 
- Mount Rainier Pool Website: DMPMPD Governance Page (click here) 
 



Home > Stay Informed > MRSC Insight Blog > March 2025

> Running for Local Office? Filing Week Begins May 5

Running for Local Office? Filing Week Begins

May 5

March 10, 2025 by Linda Gallagher

Category: Elections

Running for local elected office involves many factors, including an

understanding of the legal framework, election processes, and community

engagement strategies.

Whether you’re running for the first time, running for reelection, seeking to

run for a different office, or supporting other candidates, this blog provides

an overview of considerations related to election campaigns, including new

laws. I also introduce MRSC’s recently published webpage on this subject that

provides more in-depth resources.

Filing Week is May 5–9 This Year

The candidate filing week is a critical period for those intending to run for

office. The candidate filing week now begins on the first Monday in May

3/13/25, 2:26 PM MRSC - Running for Local Office? Filing Week Begins May 5

https://mrsc.org/stay-informed/mrsc-insight/march-2025/running-for-office 1/5



(rather than “two Mondays before Memorial Day,” as had been the deadline

in previous years).

This year, filing week starts on Monday, May 5 and ends on Friday, May 9.

Mark your calendars and tell your friends and colleagues. Also, if your agency

lists candidate filing information on its website, be sure to check that the

right dates are listed.

The filing process is governed by chapter 29A.24 RCW, which includes the

requirements for submitting candidacy forms and any associated fees. RCW

29A.24.050 notes that declarations of candidacy:

shall be filed between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. with the filing officer

beginning the first Monday in May and ending the following Friday in

the year in which the office is scheduled to be voted upon.

During this time, candidates are required to submit their declaration of

candidacy form in person, electronically, or by mail to the appropriate

elections office. Candidacy forms may be found on the your local county

auditor’s website and the Washington Secretary of State’s webpage,

Candidate Filing Forms.

These declarations demonstrate eligibility for office and provide contact

information. Candidates may want to prepare their declarations several days

or even weeks in advance to ensure a smooth filing process.

Candidate Statements for Voter Pamphlets

Candidates also have the opportunity to provide personal statements for

local voter pamphlets. These are due shortly after the filing week closes, and

candidates should consult their elections officials as part of the process, as

there are often local rules to follow in submitting these statements.

Since 2023, RCW 29A.32.230 has provided that county auditors or, if

applicable, the city clerk, adopt and publish rules for voter pamphlets that

include “deadlines for submission of candidates' statements not sooner than

11 days following the deadline for filing declarations of candidacy under RCW

29A.24.050.”

This year, the deadlines to submit candidate statements may not be sooner

than Tuesday, May 20, 2025.

Candidate Eligibility Requirements

3/13/25, 2:26 PM MRSC - Running for Local Office? Filing Week Begins May 5

https://mrsc.org/stay-informed/mrsc-insight/march-2025/running-for-office 2/5



To run for local office in Washington State, candidates must meet specific

eligibility criteria in the state constitution and statutes. Generally, a candidate

must be a U.S. citizen, at least 18 years old, a registered voter, and resident of

the jurisdiction in which they intend to run for local office.

Some jurisdictions have additional requirements (our new webpage covers

these requirements in detail). For example, any candidate for city council in

noncharter code cities must be a city resident for at least one year preceding

the date of the election to hold office (see RCW 35A.12.030 for mayor-

council code cities and RCW 35A.13.020 for council-manager code cities).

Deciding to Run for Office

Deciding to run for office is a significant decision that involves evaluating

personal motivations, understanding the responsibilities of the position, and

assessing the impact on one’s personal and professional life.

Prospective candidates should consider attending public meetings,

consulting with current or former officeholders, and reviewing media

coverage of public agencies to gain insights into the role. Understanding the

commitment required for the position is also crucial, as some roles demand

more time and resources than others.

Engaging with the Community

Community engagement is a vital component of running for office.

Candidates typically reach out on various platforms to connect with

constituents, including through social media, public forums, and community

events. Utilizing digital tools and platforms may enhance outreach efforts

and facilitate meaningful interactions with voters. Engaging with

underrepresented groups is particularly important to ensure diverse

representation and to address community-specific concerns.

Campaign Finance and Legal Considerations

Candidates must also follow campaign finance laws, which may include

reporting contributions and expenditures to the Public Disclosure

Commission (PDC).

It is also essential to understand the restrictions on using public facilities for

campaign activities, as outlined in RCW 42.17A.555. This statute prohibits

current government officials and employees from using public resources to

support or oppose candidates for office or ballot measures.

3/13/25, 2:26 PM MRSC - Running for Local Office? Filing Week Begins May 5

https://mrsc.org/stay-informed/mrsc-insight/march-2025/running-for-office 3/5



Once a person interested in running for office announces that they are

running, this may trigger reporting obligations to the PDC even before a

declaration of candidacy. We encourage interested people to visit the PDC’s

For Candidates webpages for candidate guidance and resources.

MRSC’s New Webpage: Focused on Local Candidates Resources

In January of this year we published a new webpage, Running for Local

Elected Office, which offers comprehensive resources about running for local

elected offices, including for positions on a governing body (e.g., city council,

county commission, fire district board) and for executive positions (e.g.,

mayor, county auditor, sheriff).

Running for Local Elected Office updates and covers in greater detail state

laws and rules governing running for office and is part of our series of

webpages on local elections.

Now that these pages are in place, MRSC will be retiring our older “Getting

Into Office” publication, so please turn to our website when researching your

questions on local government elections and candidate resources.

Conclusion and Resources

Running for local office may be a rewarding opportunity to serve one’s

community and influence local governance. By understanding the eligibility

requirements, filing week, voter pamphlet statements, community outreach,

and the PDC’s legal and financial regulations, candidates can effectively

campaign for a position in local government.

For more detailed guidance, here are links to additional resources:

MRSC

Explore Topics - Elections

MRSC Insight blogs related to elections

Use of Public Facilities in Election Campaigns

Public Disclosure Commission

Upcoming Trainings

YouTube channel

Washington Secretary of State: Candidates Resources

3/13/25, 2:26 PM MRSC - Running for Local Office? Filing Week Begins May 5

https://mrsc.org/stay-informed/mrsc-insight/march-2025/running-for-office 4/5



Disclaimer: MRSC is a statewide resource that provides general legal and policy guidance to support

local government entities in Washington State pursuant to chapter 43.110 RCW. MRSC website

content is for informational purposes only and is not intended as legal advice, nor as a substitute for

the legal advice of an attorney. You should contact your own legal counsel if you have a question

regarding your legal rights or any other legal issue.

© 2025 Municipal Research and Services Center of Washington (MRSC). All rights reserved. Privacy &

Terms.

Follow us:

MRSC is a private nonprofit organization serving local governments in

Washington State. Eligible government agencies in Washington State may

use our free, one-on-one Ask MRSC service to get answers to legal, policy, or

financial questions.

About Linda Gallagher

Linda Gallagher joined MRSC in 2017. She previously

served as a Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney for King

County and as an Assistant Attorney General.

Linda’s municipal law experience includes risk

management, torts, civil rights, transit, employment,

workers compensation, eminent domain, vehicle licensing,

law enforcement, corrections, and public health.

She graduated from the University of Washington School

of Law.

VIEW ALL POSTS BY LINDA GALLAGHER

3/13/25, 2:26 PM MRSC - Running for Local Office? Filing Week Begins May 5

https://mrsc.org/stay-informed/mrsc-insight/march-2025/running-for-office 5/5



 Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:  6a-g             Assigned to: District GM                   Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under: Consent Agenda                                                          Attachment:     Yes        
 
Subject:  Consent Agenda_____________________________________________________ 
 
Background/Summary:  
To improve process and better utilize time, the following items have been moved to the Consent Agenda: 

Item 6a:  Financial Summary 
• February Expenses and Revenue 
  
Item 6b:  Staff/Committee Reports 
• District General Manager Weekly Reports 
 

Item 6c: Adoption of Minutes 
• February 6, 2025, Special Meeting 
• February 14, 2025, Special Meeting 
• February 25, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 
 
Item 6d: Correspondence 
 

Item 6e:  Bank Transfers (MRP Revenue) 
 

Item 6f:  Voucher Approval - The following voucher/warrants totaling $16,497.73 were approved for payment.  
• $13,144.80 was processed on February 10, 2025 
• $2,589.04 was processed on February 12, 2025 
• $763.89 was processed on February 24, 2025 
 
Item 6g:  Funds Transfers (Payroll) - The following Electronic Transfers to King County totaling $79,710.33 were 
processed for payment.  
• $34,698.53 was approved for payroll on February 15, 2025 
• $32,245.49 was approved for payroll on February 28, 2025 
• $12,766.31 was approved for PSE on February 21, 2025. 
 

A total of $96,208.06 was processed in February 2025 under the oversight of the Clerk of the Board. 
 

Per RCW 42.24.180(3), “The legislative body shall provide for its review of the documentation supporting claims paid and for its 
approval of all checks or warrants issued in payment of claims at its next regularly scheduled public meeting or, for cities and towns, 
at a regularly scheduled public meeting within one month of issuance”. 
 
 

Fiscal Impact:  Detailed above. 
 
Proposed Motion:  I move to approve (or not to approve) the Consent Agenda including the vouchers and electronic 
transfer requests processed in February 2025 totaling $151,926.61.  
  
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes             No  ___ x___   Date: ___________  
 
Two Touch Rule:  _____N/A____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          _____N/A ____ Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 

Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes          No        X              Report back date: ___________  
 
 

Notes:  
- Attachments: Various 
 











DES MOINES POOL METROPOLITAN PARK DISTRICT 
 
Date: Thursday, March 20, 2024 
To: District Board Commissioners 
From: Scott Deschenes, District General Manager 
Subject: Weekly Reports - Week ending February 28-March 21, 2025 
 
 

WEEK ENDING February 28: 
 
BOARD MEETING FOLLOWUP 

• Signatures- Angela sent signatures out on Wednesday. Let us know if you need to have them resent. 
• Minutes- I will send minutes out for edits early next week. 
• Next meeting- The next board meeting is scheduled to be Tuesday, March 25 at 7pm. This depends on 

when the SAO audit exit interview will be scheduled. 
  

SCHEDULE UPDATE 
On Thursday evening, we sent  out a schedule update out that will take effect on Monday, March 3rd. This will 
include early morning hours. We also will list Sundays, which will begin on March 16. The later opening is due to 
hosting rentals including a swim meet and hydroplane capsule rescue drills. We will push the Sunday hours when 
we get closer to March 16. 
  
MRHS SWIM TEAM AT STATE 
Quentin informed me that the MRHS Swim Team placed ninth in 4A swimming. We had two staff members that 
participated including Chance Hoppenrath and Odin Schwab. 
  
LIFEGUARD AD 
I put together the following ad for the Rams Horn, which is MRHS’s student newspaper. I am also converting it to 
go into PeachJar and to other places. As you can see, the next lifeguard class will be April 7-11 from 11am-4pm 
(HSD Spring Break). If you know anyone who is interested, have them contact Emmitt. 

 
  
KING COUNTY PARKS MEETING 
My meeting with King County Parks had to be rescheduled to next Monday, March 3. I will include information in 
our next weekly report. 
 
 



KC PARKS 2025 GRANT WEBINAR 
On Tuesday, February 25, I attended the 2025 King County Parks webinar. Below are a couple of slides. The 
deadline is March 31. 

 
  
SAO AUDIT UPDATE 
We met with the auditor on Thursday. We are going to create at least two new policies, and they will be in the office 
next Friday for inspection. We still have not set a date for the exit interview, but it looks like they want to wrap it up 
before school audit season starts. 



  
SAO CYBERDEFENSE CHECK 
The auditor is also forwarding us the cyber defense information that was requested. I will start completing the 
paperwork when I find some time. 
  
SNOW DAY LESSONS COST 
The cost of the lessons that were cancelled on February 5th were $785.35. That is how much was credited back to 
families. We decided to choose a credit over a reschedule to keep the lessons on track before this summer. 
  
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
I met with Linda on the Employee Handbook, and there are not a lot of changes between us and Tukwila’s, but we 
are working to incorporate some updates including better cyber security, minor work regulations and training 
expectations for staff among other things. 
  
DECK REPAIR 
There is an exposed bolt that is by the diving boards in the deep end that was discovered during our last 
inspection. Quentin is working to fill the hole. 
  
LOBBY TV 
I am working to purchase a television in the next couple of weeks and working on getting the software installed and 
ready to be installed by the time of installation. 
  
SHOWER REPAIRS 
We are working out some details to get the shower repairs over the next two weeks. 
  
RESEARCH 

• April is Adult Learn to Swim Month (US Master Swimming) https://www.usms.org/alts-central/april-is-alts-
month 

• Some of San Diego’s neighborhood rec centers could under revamped funding plan (San Diego 
Union) https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/2025/02/20/some-san-diego-neighborhoods-rec-centers-
could-soon-get-a-big-boost-under-revamped-funding-plan/ 

• NRPAs response to executive orders (NRPA 
SmartBrief/Blog) https://www.nrpa.org/executiveorderresponse2025/?utm_source=MagnetMail&utm_me
dium=email&utm_campaign=2%2E18%2E25%20NRPA%20This%20Week 

• Highline School District to interview ten finalists for districts 4 and 5 (BTown 
Blog)  https://www.newsbreak.com/b-town-burien-blog-560853/3829640720530-reminder-highline-
school-board-will-interview-10-finalists-for-district-4-and-district-5-seats-this-wednesday-feb-26 

• New reporting requirements for 2024 annual financial reporting (MRSC Insight Blog) https://mrsc.org/stay-
informed/mrsc-insight/february-2025/2024-annual-financial-report 

 
 

WEEK ENDING March 7: 
 
JANUAY 25 BOARD MEETING FOLLOW-UP 

• (FOLLOW-UP) King County Parks 2026-2031: No levy dates have been set yet for the levy. They state either 
Summer or Fall. I will let you know when this is set. 

• Minutes for Edit: In February we had three sets of meetings for editing. Please have all edits back by 
Tuesday, March 18 at noon. 

• Signatures from February 25 Meeting: The updated information has been posted for inspection. There were 
only three of five signatures, but I will updated it once everyone has signed it. 

  
SWIM LESSON REGISTRATION 



We put swim lesson registration information out this week. Registration starts next week. The information was sent 
out by email blast, social media, PeachJar, and we sent emails out to all current students. Registration starts on 
Tuesday, March 11. 
https://createsend.com/t/d-DBB835D86E2F64102540EF23F30FEDED 
  
PROMOTION OF SUNDAYS 
To better launch Sundays, I am going to create a special event for Sundays and offer it at $1 for adults. My goal is to 
make people aware of the Sunday schedule, and hopefully they will keep coming back. 

 
  
APRIL POOL’S DAY EVENT 
I am going to start posting the April Pool’s Day flyer next week for our free quarterly PeachJar post. I will post it to 
all area elementary schools and junior highs. The event is April 12 from 1-3pm. 
We will also send an email blast out once it is posted on PeachJar. 



 
  



 
Note-In the past we had people that signed up for the free event, but didn’t show. I am putting the free event 
information on the second page in the hopes of getting more people that just want to attend the event. 
  
SAO AUDIT UPDATE 

• Onsite Visit: SAO will be here on Friday, March 7 at noon. 



• Ending: The auditor estimates completing the audit by the end of the month. 
  
PTSA EVENT OPENING 
We have May 10 available, but none of the schools it was offered to were interested.  
  
GRANTS UPDATES 

• ENGINEER OF RECORD: I am going to schedule a meeting with the capital and contracts committee to 
move forward with the engineer of record. HSD has not responded to my email.  

• HSD OUTREACH: HSD hasn’t responded to my message last week, so I am going to contact the 
superintendent. 

• NEXT GRANT ROUND: The deadline for both grants is March 31. 
o Aquatic Facilities: We are going to try to put an application together for the electrical at the pool. 

We hope to have the proposed estimate by March 24. 
o Programming: I spoke with staff, and we don’t have a good program that adds to our mission with 

current staff, so we are going to pass on applying for this grant. 
  
HEALTH INSPECTION REPAIR 
Quentin is going to repair an area that a small area of concrete has receded in the deep end by the diving board. 
The repair should be around $100. 
  
SHOWER REPAIR 
We are awaiting parts, but will be closing the locker rooms on a day for repairs. We will give patron the option to 
use the pool, but they will need to shower at home before and after. 
  
WCIA CYBER INSURANCE 
I have to complete an updated cybersurvey, even though we are leaving this year. They stated the coverage ends 
on May 31, so we will need to complete it for the last two months of coverage. 
  
RESEARCH 

• $7M aquatic center to be built in much needed area of upstate New York (NRPA 
Smartbrief) https://nj1015.com/ixp/81/p/7mil-aquatic-center-to-be-built-in-much-needed-area-of-
upstate-new-york/ 

• Best practices in aquatics (NRPA Magazine) https://ezine.nrpa.org/nrpa/ParksRecreationMagazine/march-
2025/index.php#/p/46 

• Peter Kwon announces run for King County Council (Westside 
Seattle) https://www.westsideseattle.com/robinson-papers/2025/03/03/peter-kwon-announces-run-king-
county-council 

• Washington State Grants 14.3m in facility retrofits 
(MRSC/SmartCitiesDive) https://www.smartcitiesdive.com/news/washington-state-grants-143-million-
public-building-retrofits-Eatonville-tri-states/740647/ 

• Crating spaces for support (NRPA 
Magazine) https://ezine.nrpa.org/nrpa/ParksRecreationMagazine/march-2025/index.php#/p/20 

• HSD Update on Board Openings (Waterland Blog) https://waterlandblog.com/highline-school-board-
announces-finalists-for-district-4-reopens-district-5-
applications/?fbclid=IwY2xjawI2vplleHRuA2FlbQIxMQABHRABPlKTUMVTWlgd0043DV3GiKCymS5KQpxiB
sa-OAwlwYfa2GI92gs5vQ_aem_cE1WD83oH8sSxcjcKWkraQ 

 
 

WEEK ENDING March 14: 
 
IMPORTANT! RUNNING FOR OFFICE DEADLINES 
Just a reminder that the deadline for running for office in 2025 is May 5-9. Positions 3, 4 and 5 are all up for election 
this year. 



Click link below for more information including process. 
https://mrsc.org/stay-informed/mrsc-insight/march-2025/running-for-office 
  
NEXT BOARD MEETING 
The next board meeting is Tuesday, March 25. I will have the packet out on Thursday, March 20 around 
3:15pm.  Just a reminder that Commissioner Dusenbury will be leading the meeting. 
  
WEEKDAY MORNING PARKING ISSUE 
We are limiting the water exercise class to 30 due to not having enough parking in the parking lot. During the 
school year, there is no overflow parking. The class is still tight at 30, so it is probably a good cutoff for the quality 
of the class too. 
  
DEEP WATER EXERCISE 
The deep water exercise class has requested a second hour of classes. The class has been as large as 15, and is 
starting to take up a third lane on some days. Staff has stated that we need to keep the class size limited to 
balance with lap swimming. They may reach out to the board for additional space. 
  
SWIM LESSON REGISTRATION 

• Current Student Registration: On Tuesday, March 11, we hosted current swim lesson registration and 
brought in about $10k in revenue. With online registration, some classes filled within 2-5 minutes.  

• Email Update: On Thursday, March 13, we sent an update out about openings in classes. Click link below 
for more information. 

o https://createsend.com/t/d-3D1361DE5E6959452540EF23F30FEDED 
o New Student Registration: New Student Registration was Thursday. It was not as busy as Tuesday 

registration, but there still were a number of registrations. All Adult and Level classes are full with 
exception of Level 5. Parent and Child has some spots in the Saturday 2 class and 
Monday/Wednesday 1/2. Pre classes are mostly full with four spots total available in PreSchool 3. 
Overall 209 of 220 spots are filled with all classes to go with registration to continue next week. 
Emmitt increased class size from 200 to 220 from last year to this year. We do have a number of 
people on waitlists. 

  
SWIM LESSON CREDITS 
We had a child throw up a small amount during swim lessons on Saturday March 8 at 10am, which affected about 
40 participants. The pool had to be closed to clean up and disinfect the water. The pool reopened at 10:30am after 
adequate cleaning/filtering time. All 10am participants were credited for one class. This is the second set of 
credits for lessons this winter with the first being the power outage that affected weekday classes earlier this 
winter. 
  
SUNDAY FUNDAY PROMOTION 
I setup a Facebook event and offered a promotion to help get Sundays going. I am hoping the momentum will help 
Sunday participation. 



http://createsend.com/t/d-
1254A7BE8E22035F2540EF23F30FEDED

 
  
EARLY MORNING PROMOTION IDEA 
The early mornings are still not very busy, so I am hoping to develop a promotion during May, which is Water Safety 
Month. It might be good to have an early bird special to push usage during these times. 
  
APRIL POOL’S DAY EMAIL BLAST 
We have put out the April Pool’s Day event through email blast, social media and free posting to local schools 
through PeachJar. The event will be Saturday, April 12 from 1-3pm, and is free. 
https://createsend.com/t/d-DEF9B3600087C9E02540EF23F30FEDED 
  
APRIL IS ADULT LEARN TO SWIM MONTH 
I added a proclamation for April is Adult Learn to Swim month to the March 25 agenda. The program is run through 
US Masters Swimming. I think Masters Swimming would be a great program, if we could find the space. It would 
help better promote lifelong swimming and help expand our programming. 
https://www.usms.org/alts-central/april-is-alts-month 
 
 



YOUTH FREE SWIM UPDATE 
Through March 9, not counting $1 swims. We increased from 49 (2024) to 89 (2025) youth users. This does not 
include attendees of the $1 swim. There still are some people that are not sharing their personal information for 
the grant that are being charged daily fees. 
  
WSDOT MEETING 
On Wednesday, March 12, I met with WSDOT on the process for applying. They are also going to send me some 
other potential pieces of property in the area that may be available in the next couple of years. 
  
CAPITAL AND CONTRACTS COMMITTEE 
We met about the grants, engineer of record and school lease. The committee requested I bring it back to the 
board before moving forward. I will discuss the rest of the conversation at a public meeting. 
  
KING COUNTY GRANT APPLICATION 
We are working on an application for replacing the electric systems at Mount Rainier Pool including panels. We did 
a walkthrough on Wednesday, March 12. MacMiller is putting together an estimate. The grant deadline has been 
extended to April 3 (formerly March 31) to not conflict with Ramadan. 
  
BLOW DRYERS IN BOTH BATHROOMS 
During our tour, the issues with the blow dryers was discussed. The issue with dryers is not the electrical system, 
but the units themselves. We are going to work out a better tracking system and preventive maintenance schedule 
to lower issues with these units. On Friday, two units were already reported to be out of service. 
  
HSD MEETING 
I met with the Capital and Facilities Director over-the-phone on Thursday morning. I am trying to get a letter of 
support for the next grant, and work on the covenant information from the current grants. I will discuss this more at 
the next meeting. 
  
President Young and I are going to meet with members of the HSD leadership team. I am awaiting an email to 
schedule the meeting. 
  
WATER FLOW ISSUE 
We are experiencing waterflow issues due larger amounts of users. Quentin is going to increase the amount of 
backwashes. Hopefully this will help alleviate the situation. 
  
SAO AUDIT UPDATE 
We are continuing to compile data for SAO. They expect the final days for the audit to be around the end of the 
month. We are still sending documents, and getting follow-up requests. 
  
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
We have a draft of the employee handbook that we are going to send to the policy and procedures committee early 
next week. 
  
POLICY UPDATES 
We are presenting policy updates for an electronic funds transfer and amendments to cash receipting at the 
March 25 board meeting. 
  
LOBBY TELEVISION 
Quentin is working to buy a television for the lobby. He hopes to have it in place over the next couple of weeks. 
  
MRHS RECORD BOARD 
The record board for MRHS that Shane Stender is donating will be delivered next week. MRHS is putting any 
dedication on hold. We will let you know more when we have more information. 



  
COLIBRI AD FOR NP CITY SCENE 
Gene is going to update our Kids Swim Free ad that we ran in DM City Currents and Peach Jar for the Normandy 
Park City Scene. 
  
CYBERSECURITY SURVEY FOR WCIA 
We had to complete a cybersecurity survey for WCIA. If we had not, our current cybersecurity coverage would end 
in June. 
  
PASSWORD SOFTWARE 
With the audit and overall changeover of staff, I am recommending that we add BitWarden password protection to 
the full-time staff’s computers and district clerk office computer. This will add $6/month x 6 workstations, but I 
think it will help with continuity and security in the future. 
  
PEACHJAR NUMBERS  
Below are our PeachJar numbers. The April Pool’s Day free posting will break on Friday, March 14 and go out to all 
area elementary and middle schools. 

 

 
 
 
 
 



WRPA AQUATICS MEETING 
Quentin mentioned the WRPA Aquatics Meeting had no standout items that were discussed. There was discussion 
of transgender policies. We passed the following policy in 2017. It has been eight years, so I am going to have 
legal/insurance review the policy. 
  
ROTARY/BLUES AND BREWS FESTIVAL 
As part of our community outreach, I have signed up for Des Moines/Normandy Park Rotary. Before Covid-19, the 
board allowed me to use my district computer to help promote the events. I have agreed to help promote the 
festival again. If there are no objections, I will use the computer in my own time to help send information out to 
calendar bulletins in the Seattle and Puget Sound region. 
  
RESEARCH 

• Water Safety (NRPA Magazine) https://ezine.nrpa.org/nrpa/ParksRecreationMagazine/march-
2025/index.php#/p/10 

• Pushing for realistic in-service trainings (NRPA 
Magazine) https://ezine.nrpa.org/nrpa/ParksRecreationMagazine/march-2025/index.php#/p/16 

• Yorkville set to benefit from electric tax as data centers come online; property tax impact unknown (ICMA 
SmartBrief) https://www.wspynews.com/news/local/yorkville-set-to-benefit-from-electric-tax-as-data-
centers-come-online-property-tax-impact/article_0455c778-fdae-11ef-87a7-27a1b5153f0e.html 

 
 

WEEK ENDING March 21: 
 
BOARD MEETING 
The packet will be over 200 pages, so I added bookmarks to help navigate the PDF. There are a couple of items that I am 
awaiting information back from WSDOT and the school district that might be updated at the meeting. 
  
Just a reminder that President Young may not be attending and Commissioner Dusenbury will be leading the meeting. If 
you cannot attend, please contact me to ensure we have enough people for a quorum. 
  
SWIM LESSONS START THIS SATURDAY 
We have a good number of people on waiting lists. Emmitt was able to add an 8am class for Level 6 wait listers, but the 
problem we have for the rest of the times, is the pool space is filled with classes. The only other option would be to 
eliminate family swim times, which there are few affordable third places in the community. The openings from 2024 were 
around 200, and he increased it to around 225 in 2025 (12.5% increase). 
  
SHOWER REPAIRS 
There will be no showers the morning of Friday, March 28. An email and signage will be posted by this Friday to notify 
patrons. MacMiller will start with repairs to the women’s showers and then the men's showers afterwards. We may stay 
open and allow people to shower at home, as we did during Covid-19. The showers are one of the largest issues we 
receive complaints about at the pool, so it will be nice to have them repaired. 
  
SUNDAY ATTENDANCE 
We offered a $1 for adults fee for Sunday and had around 20 kids show up. 
Commissioner Stender shared the following feedback from lap swimming on Sunday morning… 
  

Sharing some commentary from today.  
  
While swimming today I overheard 2 guys talking about how much they were excited to have the 
Sunday hours. One also commented to me he's come in the early new hours as well and likes seeing the 
pool open more often.  

  
REQUEST FOR SUNDAY SWIM LESSONS 



Quentin received an email over the weekend requesting Sunday Swim Lessons. This is the first formal request we have 
received for this service. 
  

Hi Mt. Rainier Pool team, 
 
Would you consider offering Sunday classes?  
 
Local parks and rec sports team all host their practices on Monday/Wednesdays (for example T-Ball, 
soccer) or Tuesday/Thursdays (basketball) games on Saturday mornings and its impossible to to squeeze 
in swimming successfully year round. Our evenings are impossible as we get off work at 5pm and by the 
time we get kids from after school childcare, its essential we get them into bed and into an early 
bedtime. We would love to have an activity on Sunday morning as that’s always open.  
 
Have you ever gotten this feedback from anyone else? What would need to happen to make Sunday 
classes an option? Im happy to help make happen if there are options. 
 
Cheers, 
XXXXX 

  
REQUEST FOR EARLIER WATER EXERCISE TIME 
I received the following message on Monday, Match 16 and responded to it on the same day. I called Quentin to ensure 
we were both on the same page. 
  
REQUEST: 

Hello, I writing to ask if it is possible to change the hrs for the water aerobics evening class 
back to 6-7. The current time of 7-8 is too late , I’m sure others have complained about the 
time change. 
Thank you for your time 

  
ANSWER: 

Dear XXXX, 
Thank you for reaching out and sharing your feedback regarding the water aerobics class 
schedule. We understand that the time change may not work for everyone, and we truly 
appreciate your input. 
Unfortunately, due to limited water space and the need to prioritize earlier evening times 
for youth and family swimming, we are unable to move the class back to 6:00-7:00 PM at 
this time. We strive to balance programming to meet the needs of all members, and this 
current schedule allows us to best serve a variety of community groups. 
However, we value your feedback and will keep your request in mind as we review future 
scheduling adjustments. If an earlier option becomes available, we will be sure to 
communicate any updates. 
Please let us know if there’s anything else we can do to support your fitness goals, and thank 
you for being a part of our community. 
Best regards, 
  
Scott Deschenes, District General Manager 
Des Moines Pool MPD/Mt Rainier Pool 
 

WATER SAFETY INSTRUCTOR CLASS 
Quentin and Emmitt led a water safety instructor course this week. There were six staff that participated in the course. 

Having American Red Cross Water Safety Instructor (WSI) certified instructors at the Mount Rainier 
Pool will significantly enhance the quality, safety, and effectiveness of our swim lesson programs. The 



standardized teaching methods ensure consistency across classes, allowing swimmers of all ages and 
skill levels to progress more efficiently. Enhanced instructor training in safety, risk management, and 
tailored instruction techniques leads to fewer incidents and better student outcomes. Additionally, this 
certification boosts instructor confidence, resulting in engaging, professional lessons that meet 
community expectations and foster long-term participation at our pool. 

LIFEGUARD CERTIFICATION COURSE 
We will be offering another Lifeguard Certification course for Highline School District spring break (April 7-11). 
Unfortunately, Federal Way School District will be holding their spring break the week before. See link below for more 
information. 
https://createsend.com/t/d-F84FE5E57581A72C2540EF23F30FEDED 
 
LOBBY TELEVISION 
Quentin is going to buy a television next week. I am working on getting the signage ready for implementation. We may 
need to buy a stick for $80 to handle the software, but it is dependent on the type of smart television. 
 
RECORD BOARD 
The record board should be delivered next week. Quentin will be working to get a company to install it. 
 
COLLEGE SWIM TEAM RENTAL 
A college swim team could potentially be renting a couple of lanes from us early next week, as they prepare for a meet at 
KCAC. 
  
CHATGPT QUESTION OF THE WEEK “ IS THERE ADEQUATE WATER SPACE IN KING COUNTY TO 
SERVE KING COUNTY?” 

Assessing whether King County has sufficient swimming pools to serve its current population involves 
examining both the availability of aquatic facilities and the community’s demand for such amenities. 

Current Aquatic Facilities in King County: 

• Weyerhaeuser King County Aquatic Center: Located in Federal Way, this world-class facility includes 
an Olympic-sized competition pool, a diving pool, and a warm water recreation pool. It hosts various 
national and international competitions and is open to the public for lap swims, family swimming, water 
exercise, and swimming lessons.   

• Seattle Public Pools: The Seattle Parks and Recreation department operates several indoor pools, 
such as Ballard Pool and Colman Pool, offering amenities like water slides, diving boards, and warm 
water spas.   

• YMCA Facilities: The Cottage Lake Outdoor Pool, operated by the Northshore YMCA, is one of the few 
outdoor pools in King County, featuring three lanes, a water slide, and 84-degree water temperatures.   

Demand and Capacity Considerations: 

• Aging Infrastructure: Many community pools in King County were built with funding from 1960s-era 
Forward Thrust Bonds and are now reaching the end of their useful lives, leading to closures and reduced 
availability.   

• Population Growth: The population of cities like Bellevue has grown significantly since the 
construction of existing aquatic facilities. For example, the Bellevue Aquatic Center was built in 1970 
when the population was approximately 61,200; today, Bellevue’s population exceeds 148,000. This 



growth has led to increased demand, resulting in extensive waitlists for swim lessons and overcrowded 
facilities.   

• Feasibility Studies: A feasibility study conducted for the north King County region identified a need for 
additional aquatic facilities to meet current and future demand.   

Conclusion: 

While King County offers several aquatic facilities, the combination of aging infrastructure and significant 
population growth has led to increased demand that existing pools struggle to meet. This imbalance suggests 
that the current number of pools may not be sufficient to serve the county’s population effectively. Addressing 
this issue may require renovating existing facilities and constructing new ones to accommodate the 
community’s needs. 

FOLLOW-UP QUESTION: What are the impacts by not providing these programs? 

Not providing swimming pools and aquatic programs in a community—especially in a growing region like 
King County—can have significant public health, safety, and social consequences. Here are the key impacts: 

1. Increased Risk of Drownings & Water Safety Issues 

 Drowning is a Leading Cause of Death for Children 

• Without swim lessons and water safety education, children and adults are at a higher risk of 
drowning, particularly in areas near natural bodies of water like Puget Sound, lakes, and rivers. 

• According to the CDC, formal swim lessons reduce drowning risk by 88% for young children. 

 More Risk in a Region with Open Water 

• King County has rivers, lakes, and Puget Sound, meaning people are still exposed to water even if 
pools aren’t available. Without structured water safety programs, drowning risks increase. 

2. Negative Health Outcomes 

 Lack of Aquatic Exercise Options 

• Pools provide low-impact, joint-friendly exercise, especially for older adults, people with 
disabilities, and those recovering from injuries. 

• Without access to water exercise, individuals may struggle to find safe, accessible fitness options, 
leading to higher obesity rates, poor cardiovascular health, and reduced mobility. 

 Fewer Opportunities for Adaptive & Therapeutic Aquatics 

• People with disabilities, arthritis, or chronic conditions benefit greatly from warm water therapy 
and hydrotherapy. 

• Without pools, many lose access to critical rehabilitation resources that improve quality of life. 



3. Reduced Childhood Development & Education 

 Loss of Swim & Water Safety Education in Schools 

• Many school districts integrate swim programs into PE classes—without facilities, students lose 
this essential life skill. 

• Lower-income students often rely on school-based programs to learn to swim since private lessons 
may be unaffordable. 

 Limited Early Childhood Development 

• Water-based play helps develop motor skills, coordination, and confidence in young children. 

• Without pools, fewer children gain comfort and competence in water during critical developmental 
years. 

4. Decline in Community & Social Well-being 

 Fewer Gathering Spaces for Families & Teens 

• Pools serve as “third places”—social hubs where families, teens, and seniors gather outside of home 
and work/school. 

• Without public pools, families lose safe spaces for bonding, and teens lose positive recreational 
outlets, increasing youth isolation. 

 Increased Summer Slide & Inequity 

• During summer months, pools provide structured, affordable activities that keep kids active and 
engaged. 

• Without pools, lower-income families have fewer recreation options, while wealthier families can 
afford private clubs, widening recreational inequity. 

5. Economic & Workforce Impacts 

 Job Loss & Limited Workforce Development 

• Public pools provide lifeguarding and swim instructor jobs, especially for teens and young adults. 

• Without pools, there are fewer employment opportunities, and fewer trained lifeguards means 
increased risks at beaches, lakes, and private pools. 

 Local Businesses & Tourism Impact 

• Pools, aquatic centers, and swim competitions bring in visitors, tourism revenue, and business for 
nearby restaurants, shops, and hotels. 



• A lack of aquatics programming could hurt local businesses that rely on these community events. 

6. Increased Burden on Emergency Services 

 More Water Rescues & Medical Emergencies 

• Without water safety education, emergency responders face more rescues at local lakes, beaches, 
and rivers. 

• Lifeguards at public pools serve as first responders, preventing incidents before they escalate. 

 Higher Healthcare Costs 

• Drownings and water-related injuries increase medical costs for families and local healthcare 
systems. 

• Lack of water exercise options may lead to more chronic health conditions, further straining medical 
resources. 

Conclusion: A Lack of Aquatic Facilities Hurts Everyone 

Communities that lack public pools and swim programs face higher drowning risks, poorer public 
health, fewer youth opportunities, and economic setbacks. Investing in aquatic facilities is not just 
about recreation—it’s about safety, equity, and community well-being. 

RESEARCH 
• SWIM Act Reintroduced (Aquatics International) https://www.aquaticsintl.com/facilities/swim-act-

reintroduced_o 
• Skagit County takes next step in creating new website (Go Skagit) 

https://www.goskagit.com/news/local_news/skagit-county-takes-next-step-in-creating-new-
website/article_f69fddac-fead-11ef-8f9f-ef6345129a03.html 

• Transportation workers’ perspectives on ADA (APA) https://planning.org/blog/9306968/transportation-workers-
perspectives-on-ada/ 

 



22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is committed to compliance with both the Washington Law Against Discrimination and the Americans 
with Disabilities Act.  The District’s regular meetings are being held hybrid including remote access to give the community more access options. See 
the information above to join a meeting.  If you have any questions, please contact Scott Deschenes, District General Manager at 206.429.3852 or 
info@mtrainierpool.com. 

 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

February 6, 2025 
7 p.m.  

Hybrid (DMPMPD District Office and Remote Online) 
 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

  
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
President Young called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. Also, present were Commissioners Dusenbury, Campbell; 
and District General Manager (GM) Deschenes; District Clerk Melum; and Legal Counsel, Brian Snure. Commissioner 
Stender logged in at 7:04 p.m. Commissioner Thorell was not present. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Commissioner Dusenbury led the flag salute. 
  
ADOPTION/MODIFICATIONS OF AGENDA Commissioner Campbell moved to approve the agenda as modified. 
Commissioner Dusenbury 2nd. Motion passed 3-0.  
 
Commissioner Stender entered the meeting at 7:04 p.m. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS – The District General manager announced the phones 
are down due to weather-related issues until Friday, February 7. He also mentioned that he met with the Des Moines 
City Manager and the information would be included in the weekly report. He also mentioned that Highline School 
District’s leadership team requested a pause on the partnership for the grants, so he is working directly with King 
County Parks, as the grants are time sensitive. Finally, he discussed the SAO audit team wanted to schedule their 
entrance exam with the board for next week, and presented times. President Young mentioned the State Auditor’s 
Office likes to have a majority of the board to list findings. After discussion, a time was set for Friday, February 14 at 
1pm. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
BUSINESS 
 
6. DISCUSSION OF REAL ESTATE 
Brian Snure, Legal Counsel briefed the board on what can and cannot be discussed before going into executive 
session on real estate. The discussion was regarding property off of 216th that was offered to the City of Des Moines 
from the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT). The board elected to stay in open session, 
after Legal Counsel’s recommendation since the conversation would not affect the price of the property.  
 
President Young mentioned the City of Des Moines elected not to purchase the land at their study session on 
January 30, 2025. He asked Legal Counsel Snure the next steps that the pool district should take, if it were 
interested in purchasing the property. Legal Counsel Snure recommended having the District General Manager 



 
2 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Meeting Minutes – 2/6/2025 
 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is holding hybrid meetings remotely and at the MRHS Library until further notice.  The public may 
join meetings through the Zoom app.  Logon information is published in each Meeting Agenda. Contact Scott Deschenes, District GM at 
scott.deschenes@desmoinespool.org if you have questions. 

reach out to the WSDOT to get more information including the purchasing process and if WSDOT would be willing 
to negotiate. 
 
President Young also questioned if the pool district could act quickly enough to make an offer on the land, or be 
bond eligible to support the purchase. He also mentioned the FCS Group’s Tax Levy Analysis that detailed the pool 
district would probably need a Levy Lid Lift to afford a purchase of the property listed at $5.35 million. He felt there 
were steps that needed to be taken before examing a purchase of land. Commissioner Campbell mentioned that 
she appreciates the situation as it help the pool district ascertain the value of a potential future pool site. 
Commissioner Stender added that the pool district needs to develop an outlined process for bonding and 
purchasing land in the future for other oppoertunities. Commissioner Dusenbury added that the pool district does 
not have enough data to show if the property is suitable for a pool, and the site would need a conditions study 
which there may not be enough time to meet WSDOT’s timeline. Legal Counsel Snure recommended reaching out 
to WSDOT to find out the timeline, the process, and more information on the property. 
 
President Young mentioned the pool district will need a couple of years to build up its reserves and a potential levy 
lid lift to be bond eligible. He mentioned that this process can help the pool district develop funds needed for a 
future levy lid lift, which would need to go to the taxpayers. He confirmed it would be good to discuss with WSDOT 
to help gather information to present to the public that our estimated costs are based on research, thus supporting 
the request for a levy lid lift. 
 
Commissioner Stender stated the board needs to develop a direction before acquiring new land or starting an 
advisory committee. He mentioned that this should be a priority before moving forward. 
 
President Young directed the District General Manager to reach out to WSDOT about their timeline and process. He 
also mentioned about having a discussion at a future meeting about discussing the next steps. He also reiterated 
the importance of building up the reserves to help give the pool district options. 
 
7. Good of the Order 
President Young mentioned the next two board meetings, which are February 14 at 1:00 p.m. and February 25 at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
With no further business the meeting was adjourned at 7:27pm. 
 
UPCOMING MEETING(S) 

 
• February 14, 2025, SAO Accountability Audit, Entrance Meeting, 1:00pm, Location: Hybrid (DMPMPD Offices 

and Online) 
• February 25, 2025, Regular Board Meeting, 7:00pm, Location: Hybrid (DMPMPD Offices and Online) 

 
Respectfully submitted by Scott Deschenes, District General Manager. 
 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners 
  



 
3 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Meeting Minutes – 2/6/2025 
 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is holding hybrid meetings remotely and at the MRHS Library until further notice.  The public may 
join meetings through the Zoom app.  Logon information is published in each Meeting Agenda. Contact Scott Deschenes, District GM at 
scott.deschenes@desmoinespool.org if you have questions. 

   
Commissioner Young  Commissioner Dusenbury 

 
    

Commissioner Campbell  Commissioner Stender 
 
     

Commissioner Thorell     
 



 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is committed to compliance with both the Washington Law Against Discrimination and the Americans 
with Disabilities Act.  The District’s regular meetings are being held hybrid including remote access to give the community more access options. See 
the information above to join a meeting.  If you have any questions, please contact Scott Deschenes, District General Manager at 206.429.3852 or 
info@mtrainierpool.com. 

 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

February 14, 2025 
7 p.m.  

Hybrid (DMPMPD District Office and Remote Online) 
 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING “SAO ENTRANCE MEETING” 

  
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
President Young called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. Also, present were Commissioners Dusenbury, Campbell 
and Stender; District General Manager (GM) Deschenes and District Clerk Melum; and Dylan Rowley, Rebecca Nyanjui 
and Paul Griswold of the Office of the Washington State Auditor (SAO). Commissioner Stender arrived at 1:11pm. 
Commissioner Thorell was no present. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Commissioner Dusenbury led the flag salute. 
  
ADOPTION/MODIFICATIONS OF AGENDA – There were no changes to the agenda, since it was a special meeting. 
Commissioner Dusenbury moved to approve the agenda. Commissioner Cambell 2nd. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS – None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
BUSINESS 
 
6. SAO ENTRANCE AUDITOR 
The SAO Auditors, Paul Griswold, Rebecca Nyanjui and Dylan Rowley presented the entrance information for the 
pool district’s accountability audit. An exit meeting will be presented at the end of the accountability audit. 
 
7. Good of the Order 
Commissioner Campbell mentioned that she is intererested in the pool district performing a cybersecurity check up. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
With no further business the meeting was adjourned at 1:27pm. 
 
UPCOMING MEETING(S) 

 
• February 28, 2025, Regular Board Meeting, 7:00pm, Location: Hybrid (DMPMPD Offices and Online) 

 
Respectfully submitted by Scott Deschenes, District General Manager. 
 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners 



 
2 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Meeting Minutes – 2/14/2025 
 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is holding hybrid meetings remotely and at the MRHS Library until further notice.  The public may 
join meetings through the Zoom app.  Logon information is published in each Meeting Agenda. Contact Scott Deschenes, District GM at 
scott.deschenes@desmoinespool.org if you have questions. 

  

   
Commissioner Young  Commissioner Dusenbury 

 
    

Commissioner Campbell  Commissioner Stender 
 
     

Commissioner Thorell     
 



22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is committed to compliance with both the Washington Law Against Discrimination and the Americans 
with Disabilities Act.  The District’s regular meetings are being held hybrid including remote access to give the community more access options. See 
the information above to join a meeting.  If you have any questions, please contact Scott Deschenes, District General Manager at 206.429.3852 or 
info@mtrainierpool.com. 

 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

February 25, 2025 
7:00 p.m.  

Hybrid (DMPMPD District Office and Remote Online) 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

  
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
President Young called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. Also, present were Commissioners Campbell, Dusenbury, 
Stender and Thorell; Aquatics Coordinator, Sevores, Aquatics Manager, Knox, District General Manager Deschenes, 
District Clerk Melum and Resident Gene Achziger.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Commissioner Dusenbury led the flag salute. 
  
ADOPTION/MODIFICATIONS OF AGENDA –The District General Manager recommended moving item 8c Scheduling 
Discussion before New Business to allow Aquatics Coordinator Sevores and Aquatics Manager Knox to leave the 
meeting early to concentrate on pool operations. Commissioner Thorell moved to approve the agenda as modified. 
Commissioner Stender 2nd. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS – The District General Manager notified the board of a 
power outage at the Mount Rainier Pool that was due to a windstorm that occurred on the early morning of Tuesday, 
February 25. Puget Sound Energy stated the power outage should be resolved by noon on Wednesday, February 26. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
6a. CONSENT AGENDA  
Commisioner Dusenbury moved to approve the Consent Agenda including the vouchers and electronic transfer 
requests processed in January 2025 totaling $151,926.61. Commissioner Stender 2nd.  The motion passed 5-0. 
 
BUSINESS MOVED TO START OF MEETING 
 
8c. Scheduling Discussion 
Aquatics Coordinator Sevores and Aquatics Manager Knox presented information on factors that affect the schedule. 
They also notified the board that the pool would be open at 6am on Monday, Wednesday and Friday mornings 
effective March 3 and Sundays effective March 16. A copy of the report is available in the agenda packet. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
7a. Policy 101 Bylaws 
The District General Manager notified the board that he received no edits from the board or legal for the bylaws, so 
the current Policy Bylaws passed in 2024 would stay in affect. 



 
2 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Meeting Minutes –02/25/2025 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is holding hybrid meetings remotely and at the MRHS Library until further notice.  The public may 
join meetings through the Zoom app.  Logon information is published in each Meeting Agenda. Contact Scott Deschenes, District General 
Manager at scott.deschenes@desmoinespool.org if you have questions. 

 
7b. Q4 Financial Report 
The District General Manager presented the fourth quarter financial report including revenue, expenses and a 
summary report. Overall revenue was 108%, and overall expenses was 81%. Overall the pool district ended the year 
at $1.877 million, which is its second best year since the 2017-2018 pool closure. A copy of the report was included 
in the February 28 agenda packet. 
 
7c. Grants Update 
The District General Manager presented an update on where the pool district stood on its three current grants. The 
pool district is trying to work with the Highline School District and King County Parks to get a 30-year covenant on 
one of the grants lowered to 15 years. They are also trying to combine the two capital projects into one closure. The 
District General Manager mentioned that youth attendance during February doubled from 2024 thanks to the Get 
Active, Stay Active Grant. 
 
The District General Manager mentioned that he attended a webinar on the 2025 King County Parks Grants. The 
grants include capital and program funding, and their deadline is March 31. 
 
The District General Manager presented that King County will have a ballot issue coming out in summer/fall for 2026-
2031. 
 
Commissioner Dusenbury expressed concerns for the 30-year covenance, and suggested the covenance responsibility 
be added to the lease in negotations. The District General Manager mentioned that he could present the question to 
legal, and see if it could be written in to the lease. 
 
7d. 575 Agreement 
The District General Manager presented the 575 agreement with how much the pool district had spent on website 
management services over the last three years. 
 
The District General Manager recommened starting discussion this fall for developing a new website, and the 
information in this request should be included in an RFQ. 
 
7e. Insurance Changeover 
The District General Manager requested to move this to the March 25 agenda. They notified the board that Enduris 
came and toured the pool, and called to state they would have a quote in before the March 25 meeting. The District 
General Manager stated they were not sure when they would have information to review before the March 25 
meeting. 
 
7f. Land Acquisition Process 
The District General Manager mentioned that he met with WSDOT, and that the WSDOT representative needs to 
reach out to their legal. They suggest pushing the item to the next board meeting for a full presentation. 
 
7g. Resolution 2025-04 Cancelled Warrants 
The District General Manager presented a resolution cancelling two warrants totaling $90.41. One has already been 
reissued, while the other is being sent to unclaimed property at the end of the year. Commissioner Campbell moved 
to approve Resolution 2025-04 Cancelled Warrants. Stender 2nd. Motion passed 5-0. 



 
3 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Meeting Minutes –02/25/2025 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is holding hybrid meetings remotely and at the MRHS Library until further notice.  The public may 
join meetings through the Zoom app.  Logon information is published in each Meeting Agenda. Contact Scott Deschenes, District General 
Manager at scott.deschenes@desmoinespool.org if you have questions. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
8a. Employee Handbook (first touch) 
The District General Manager notified the board that the employee handbook needed to be updated. This will be a 
first touch to see if the board is interested in helping with the editing. A draft will be presented at the March 25 board 
meeting with hopefully the handbook being approved at the April 22 board meeting. The board directed the Policy 
and Procedure Committee to assist with the project. 
 
8b. Employee Pay with Debit Card Option Research (first touch) 
District Clerk, Angela Melum presented an option for employee pay for an autofilled, pre-paid debit card. This card 
would function like a bank’s debit card, and would be an additional option to automatic deposit and physical checks. 
They mentioned the pool district was still awaiting information from the payroll company to be included at a future 
meeting.  
 
8c. Scheduling Discussion (Moved Before Old Business) 
 
8d. Lobby Television 
Commissioner Stender requested to have this added to the agenda, as it would help improve communication at the 
pool. He also believes it would help reduced paper signage, and other pools have utilized this. The board requested 
the District General Manager move forward within the budget. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Resident Gene Achziger notified the board that Destination Des Moines will have a cornhole tournament, and that 
Emmitt Sevores would be representing the pool district. Mr. Achziger paid the entry fee for the team. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
With no further business the meeting was adjourned at 7:54 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 
• To Be Determined, SAO Exit Interview, N/A, Location: Hybrid (DMPMPD Offices and Online) 
• March 25, 2025, Regular Board Meeting, 7:00pm, Location: Hybrid (DMPMPD Offices and Online) 

 
 
Respectfully submitted by Scott Deschenes, District General Manager. 
 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District Board of Commissioners 
 
   

Commissioner Young  Commissioner Dusenbury 
 
    

Commissioner Campbell  Commissioner Stender 



 
4 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Meeting Minutes –02/25/2025 

22015 Marine View Drive South, Suite 2B, Des Moines WA  98198 (Physical Location) 
22722 19th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198 (Mailing Address) 

To enhance our community’s quality of life by providing access to and promoting participation in aquatics programs 
 
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is holding hybrid meetings remotely and at the MRHS Library until further notice.  The public may 
join meetings through the Zoom app.  Logon information is published in each Meeting Agenda. Contact Scott Deschenes, District General 
Manager at scott.deschenes@desmoinespool.org if you have questions. 

 
     

Commissioner Thorell     
 





Special District Voucher Approval Document KC v2.0

District Name: Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District File Name: AP_DMPOLPRK_APSUPINV_20250131144051.csv

Payee (Vendor Name) Vendor No. Vendor Site Invoice No. Invoice Date Inv. Amount Description

AWC - VIMLY BENEFIT SOLUTIONS, INC 65612 01/18/2025 $2,795.52 FEB 2025 EMP BENEFIT TRUST
CRYSTAL SPRINGS 24714034 012925 01/29/2025 $77.37 WATER DELIVERY
DEPARTMENT OF RETIREMENT SYSTEMS DRS202501V2 01/01/2025 $1,781.73 JAN 2025 DCP PMT VOL 2

MACDONALD-MILLER FACILITY SOLUTIONS SVC328040 01/17/2025 $1,063.43 MEN'S SHOWER REPAIR

MACDONALD-MILLER FACILITY SOLUTIONS SVC328585 01/23/2025 $3,014.45 SHOWER TREE REPAIR

NORTHWEST LANDSCAPING SERVICES CD50496327 02/01/2025 $621.53 FEB 2025 LANDSCAPING SVCS
US BANK 01102025USB 01/10/2025 $3,790.77 JAN 2025 US BANK BILLING CCS

Printed On Friday, January 31, 2025 at 02:42:14 PM Page 2 of 2

Docusign Envelope ID: 80A6C65A-21B6-4990-8A81-A85490285A52





Special District Voucher Approval Document KC v2.0

District Name: Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District File Name: AP_DMPOLPRK_APSUPINV_20250205132547.csv

Payee (Vendor Name) Vendor No. Vendor Site Invoice No. Invoice Date Inv. Amount Description

AQUATIC SPECIALTY SERVICES 25492 01/28/2025 $579.77 JAN 2025 MONTHLY SVC
CENTRAL WELDING SUPPLY 0002292893 01/31/2025 $105.27 JAN BILLING CYLINDAR RENTAL FAC/HAZ
CITY OF DES MOINES 568 02/04/2025 $90.00 JAN 2025 POOL ADMIN SVC
DATAQUEST, LLC 24759 01/31/2025 $116.00 BKD CHK RISPOLI & DENG
GRAINGER 9395432132 02/04/2025 $503.26 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
LINDA RAY LR202502-01 02/03/2025 $654.74 JAN 2025 CONSULTING FEES
SNURE LAW OFFICE 02012025SLO 02/01/2025 $540.00 JAN 2025 ATTORNEY FEES

Printed On Wednesday, February 5, 2025 at 01:26:31 PM Page 2 of 2

Docusign Envelope ID: 13A2C375-3369-4E93-8BA4-1BD5E36FB16F





Special District Voucher Approval Document KC v2.0

District Name: Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District File Name: AP_DMPOLPRK_APSUPINV_20250219095313.csv

Payee (Vendor Name) Vendor No. Vendor Site Invoice No. Invoice Date Inv. Amount Description

JACK P COCHRAN 20250215JC164 02/15/2025 $49.68 PAYROLL PE 02.15.2025 J. COCHRAN
RACHEL O'SULLIVAN 20250215RO 02/15/2025 $204.95 PAYROLL PE 02.15.2025 R. O'SULLIVAN
SHOU BLANK 20250215SB162 02/15/2025 $99.37 PAYROLL PE 02.15.2025 S. BLANK
TITUS GILLIHAN 20250215TG 02/15/2025 $409.89 PAYROLL PE 02.15.2025 T. GILLIHAN

Printed On Wednesday, February 19, 2025 at 09:53:56 AM Page 2 of 2

Docusign Envelope ID: 102D69AE-E2F3-40B2-922E-6ECDA9BE43FB











A rate change became effective during this billing period. The listed rate item(s) that changed shows the dates, prices and charges for each portion of the 
bill period when they were in effect. Copies of the rate schedules are available upon request.

O Natural Gas Detail Information: 22722 19TH AVE S, Des Moines

Rate Schedule Meter #
Start Date

Read
End Date

Read
Turnup

Pressure
Temp

FPV
BTU Factor

CCF
Therms

Meter 
Read Type

Commercial 31 604748
1/21

18585
2/19

23639
5054

2
60

1
1.108379

5,686.459
6,302.752

Actual Read

Your Natural Gas Charge Details (29 days) Rate x Unit = Charge
6,302.752 therms used for service 1/22/2025 - 2/19/2025
Basic Charge (1/22/2025 - 1/28/2025)  $38.89 per month $ 9.39
Basic Charge (1/29/2025 - 2/19/2025)  $50.56 per month  38.36
Natural Gas Delivery Charges
 Delivery Charge (1/22/2025 - 1/28/2025)  0.723040 1,522.010 Therms  1,100.47
 Delivery Charge (1/29/2025 - 2/19/2025)  0.835650 4,780.742 Therms  3,995.03
 Gas Cost  0.488080 6,302.752 Therms  3,076.25
 Gas Cons. Program Charge  0.036560 6,302.752 Therms  230.43
Other Natural Gas Charges & Credits
 Merger Credit  0.000000 6,302.752 Therms  0.00
State Carbon Reduction Credit 
(1/22/2025 - 1/31/2025)

 −84.990000 1   −29.31

State Carbon Reduction Credit 
(2/1/2025 - 2/19/2025)

 −75.120000 1   −49.22

Subtotal of Natural Gas Charges    8,371.40

Taxes
 Effect of Des Moines City Tax  6.290% $8,371.40  526.56
 State Utility Tax ($342.75 included in above charges)  3.852%   
Current Natural Gas Charges $ 8,897.96

Definitions
Basic Charge — Covers the costs for meters, meter 
reading, billing and other costs that do not vary with 
energy use or the number of days covered by the bill.
CCF — Your meter measures the volume of natural gas 
used in hundreds of cubic feet.
Btu Factor — Converts your CCF energy usage into 
therms by adjusting it for actual heat content. Btu stands 
for British Thermal Unit.
Therm — Your use of natural gas is billed in units called 
therms. It is a unit of heat that equals 100,000 Btu.
Other Natural Gas Charges and Credits — Includes the 
State Carbon Reduction chage and the Merger credit.
State Carbon Reduction Credit — Available proceeds 
from the state greenhouse gas emission allowances sold 
at auction through the Washington’s Climate Commitment 
Act Cap-and-Invest Program.

A rate change became effective during this billing period. The listed rate item(s) that changed shows the dates, prices and charges for each portion of the 
bill period when they were in effect. Copies of the rate schedules are available upon request.

Your bill reflects changes in rates that went into effect on January 29, 2025.

Page 3 of 3Docusign Envelope ID: 4127676D-77C6-49ED-B483-E9F23B7BA53C



Payment Receipt

1 of 1 payment(s) have been scheduled.

Confirmation # 4136911414
Payment Type Utility
Account #
Status Scheduled
Payment Date Mar 10, 2025
Payment Method
Payment Amount $12,766.31
Warm Home Fund (optional) $0.00

Payment 1 of 1

Combined Payment Amount Charged $12,766.31

2/24/25, 9:05 AM Payment Receipt: One-time payment: : Puget Sound Energy

https://ipn2.paymentus.com/cp/make-payment-wizard.action?CSRF_TOKEN=1740416710708-b57b51013e9d48a8a10a9cc8e899ea09ee98e80ee308… 1/1

Docusign Envelope ID: 4127676D-77C6-49ED-B483-E9F23B7BA53C

2/25/2025



 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:  7a      Assigned to: District G.M.  Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under:    Old Business                           Attachment:     Yes  
 
Subject: Insurance Changeover Update 
 
Background/Summary:  
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District (pool district) is looking at changing over its 
insurance, effective August 1, 2025. 
 
The pool district has received two of three quotes for a full year. We should have preliminary 
estimates from all three by March 25, 2025. Will also need to get pro-rated options. 
 
All three companies have stated they will be able to provide the coverage that is outlined in the 
Highline School District lease for Mount Rainier Pool. I have attached full year estimates for all 
three. I will provide more detailed information at the April 22 board meeting, while we have all 
board commissioners present. This presentation will include a more detailed breakdown. 
 
I will work with the Policy and Procedure Committee to develop a presentation on the options to 
be presented. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: Decision due to escalating costs with not much supporting documentation or 
reasoning for increases with current insurance provider. 
 
Proposed Motion:  
No motion. Informational only. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes        No___X ____ Date:      N/A      
 
Three Touch Rule:                              Committee Review 
    ___Continuous_____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ___N/A ______ Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  No ___ x ____ Report back date: ___________  
 
Notes:  
- Insurance Changeover Update (March 25 2025) 
- Submission of Each Insurance Option: 
 - AWC-RMSA 
 - CIAW 
 - Enduris (NEW) 
 



Insurance 
Changeover
Update
Regular Board Meeting
March 25, 2025







INSURANCE RATES BREAKDOWN

COMPANY ESTIMATE (2025) NOTES

AWC-RMSA $45,511 CEO called after quote, and stated the board wanted to re-explore 
adding members. Should be ready for new quote in June.

CIAW $49,724 Been stable. No changes.

ENDURIS $58,606 Stated future rates would be stable and based on inflation. 
Different schedule 9/1-8/31.

WCIA (original 
estimate)

$59,017 Rate change will be more affected for 2026 with new 
classification.







 

 
 
 
 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan 
Park District 

 
 
 
 



 

 

Who we are, and why we’re different 
 

RMSA is AWC’s property and liability coverage solution 
RMSA is the full-service risk management choice, protecting the employees, assets and officials of 
Washington’s cities and towns. We are large enough to safeguard your assets, yet small enough to know your 
name. We strive to solve problems before they happen and protect you when they do. 
 

Our sole focus is local government 
The daily operations of running a city or town are complex. RMSA knows cities, and we understand the unique 
property and liability exposures that come with running municipal services. With our in-depth programs, tools, 
and staff expertise, we also know how to be your partner and help you mitigate those exposures. We build 
relationships with our members, and by doing so we help increase the effectiveness of municipal staff, reduce 
potential costs, and enhance the safety of our communities. 
 

Risk management services 
Our experienced team of risk management professionals provides the highest level of customer service and 
resources to help our members protect themselves. Members know they can contact RMSA staff anytime to 
talk through challenging situations, ask questions, and get clear, knowledgeable answers. 
 

Governed by members 
RMSA is operated by members, for members. Annually, every member has the opportunity to vote for 
members of both the board of directors and the operating committee. Any elected official from the membership 
is eligible to serve on the Board of Directors , and any member employee is eligible to serve on the Operating 
Committee. 
 
 

We are AWC 
As a program of AWC, RMSA has direct access and input into AWC’s legislative monitoring 
and advocacy activities, as well as unparalleled insight into the needs and challenges facing 
all Washington cities. Plus, because we work alongside the other AWC pooling services, we 
are interconnected and can fully support members’ needs by directing to resources across our 
organization. 
 

 
  





Risk management services 
RMSA doesn’t just provide coverage when a loss occurs. Our risk management program, powered by years of 
experience, brings to light areas of concern that can be rectified to make our communities safer. 

We meet with our members in person to identify issues that could become claims, protecting members before 
an incident happens. Members know they can trust our knowledgeable staff—and that we’re always just a 
phone call or email away. 

RMSA Member Standards 
One of our most potent loss control tools is our board 
of directors-approved Member Standards. 

These standards—developed based on claims, 
incident data, and best practices—serves as the 
road map for successful mitigation of risk for our 
members. Combined with recommendations from 
our professional risk management staff and the 
resources included in RMSA’s programs, the RMSA 
Member Standards help members reduce their 
losses, protect their own assets, and safeguard the 
assets of the pool. 

Pre-litigation program 
RMSA’s pre-litigation program helps members by 
providing free legal assistance to make informed 
decisions on issues with the potential to turn into 
claims. This program is highly successful and has 
contributed to overall claim cost reductions. 

Members most frequently use the program to 
address issues relating to: 

• Employment

• Land use

• Contracting

• Highly visible cases in the public eye

Contract review 
Don’t be left unnecessarily exposed by confusing 
insurance, hold harmless, and indemnity language 
found in many contracts. RMSA has the expertise to 
help members stay protected. Utilize our members-
only online resources or contact our staff, who are 
available to review any contract, interlocal, or service 
agreement as needed. 

On-site with members 
We bring our knowledge and experience to you. 
RMSA staff meet on-site with local officials and 
perform thorough inspections of buildings, parks, and 
equipment that the member is responsible for 
maintaining. 

Members receive a report detailing their specific 
possible exposures. Oftentimes, the identified 
hazards can be mitigated through RMSA’s Loss 
Prevention Grants. Together, we can identify issues 
and take proper steps to mitigate any liability 
concerns. 

HR and personnel resources 
Our partnership with Zywave allows members 
unlimited access to a myriad of HR resources. These 
include self-service policies that can be edited to 
meet each member’s needs, an expert help hotline, 
employee review and discipline guidance templates, 
and evaluations that provide guidance and targeted 
resources. 

Targeting cyber security 
eRiskHub is our partner for cyber security resources. 
It provides members with free tools and resources to 
help understand their unique cyber exposures, 
including how to establish a response plan and 
minimize the effects of a breach on their entity. 
Members have access to this resource free of 
charge. 

Online resources 
Members have access to RMSA-approved sample or 
model policies, procedures, and tip sheets anytime 
on our website. 



 

 

Training 
Training is an essential component of our 
comprehensive loss prevention program, and an 
investment in our members. RMSA offers 
eLearnings, webinars, and on-site training. Our 
adaptive approach makes training convenient and 
accessible. 
 
On-demand training 
RMSA•U is the one-stop-shop for free online training 
whenever it’s needed. An extensive catalog of 
training topics is provided, and all courses are 
available year-round. There are beneficial classes for 
nearly every position, and courses that meet our 
Member Standards training requirements are clearly 
identified. On-site and live webinar trainings are free 
to RMSA members and open to non-members on a 
cost-per-attendee basis. Trainings are publicized in 
both RMSA News and AWC’s CityVoice e-
newsletters. 
 
Scholarships 
RMSA’s scholarship program helps members attend 
a wealth of non-RMSA sponsored trainings and 
conferences that focus on mitigating risk. 
 

Grant programs 
We are proud to offer two grant programs for our 
members to help reduce risks. 
 
Loss Prevention Grant Program 
Our Loss Prevention Grant Program provides 
reimbursement for projects that increase safety, 
reduce risk exposure, and provide savings for pool 
members. 
 
Members are encouraged to be creative! Past grants 
have helped fund sidewalk improvements, 
playground safety, additional lighting for parks, sewer 
inspection equipment, cyber-services, policy 
updates, and more. 
 
Lexipol Grant Program 
Our Lexipol Grant Program allows members to seek 
reimbursement for up to 50% of the annual cost, 
capped at $5,000, for police and fire departments’ 
annual subscriptions to Lexipol services. As the 
leader in providing state-specific policies and training 
for public safety organizations, Lexipol membership 
is encouraged for all members with fire departments, 
police departments, and jails. 
 
 

  



Claims happen 
We all hope that claims will never occur, but when they do, we have a professional, knowledgeable claims 
team to help you through the incident. Our staff excel in communicating with claimants, attorneys, and city 
staff. 

We help you navigate your coverage—clarifying what’s covered, and what’s not, and our expert team guides 
you through the claims process ensuring everything runs smoothly. 

24-hour claims hotline 
Claims can happen at any time. RMSA claims staff is available at all hours, ensuring that you have quality  
claims service when you need it. 

Access to additional coverages 
Just about everything requires some type of insurance coverage, which is why RMSA assists members in 
obtaining all types of specialty coverages, including aviation, fine arts, and special events liability. We also 
assist members with understanding and obtaining surety coverages, including notary and public  
official bonds. 

Additional resources 
RMSA News 
RMSA’s monthly electronic newsletter keeps members informed and includes information about grants, 
scholarships, training opportunities, tips to manage risks, claims, rate information, and more. 

RMSA website 
Members can find what they are looking for on RMSA’s website, including risk management guides, coverage 
information, self-serve certificate of coverage, RMSA U online trainings, asset inventory updates, tort claim 
forms, member standards, and more. 









AWC RMSA Member Standards
The AWC Risk Management Service Agency’s Member Standards were 
adopted by the Board of Directors to provide consistent administrative 
practices for members, reducing property and liability losses.

The Standards selected were identified as those which have historically 
driven AWC RMSA’s claims expenses and where compliance with these 
Standards would either eliminate or greatly reduce exposure for AWC RMSA 
and its membership. By following these Standards, the Board is confident 
that members will reduce costs for themselves and help the long-term 
financial stability of the AWC RMSA.

An AWC RMSA member’s failure to comply with Required Member 
Standards will result in a deductible being applied to the loss.

Advisory Member Standards are principles and practices which, while not 
required, have been identified and recognized by both AWC RMSA and the 
pooling industry as sound best practices. AWC RMSA strongly believes that 
following these Advisory Member Standards will significantly decrease the 
likelihood of experiencing property and liability losses.

Compliance with these Member Standards can be accomplished in various 
ways. Loss control grants will be prioritized to assist members in meeting 
the standards. Also, AWC RMSA online, onsite, or on demand training is free 
to members to meet training standards. In all cases RMSA staff will work 
with members to assist in achieving compliance with all Standards.

Table of contents
Leadership Member Standards .......................................................................................1

Contract and interlocal agreement review Member Standard ............................1

Crime Member Standards .................................................................................................2

Cyber security Member Standards .................................................................................3

Driving Member Standards ..............................................................................................4

Employment practices Member Standards ................................................................5

Land use Member Standards ...........................................................................................6

Law enforcement Member Standard ............................................................................6

Public works Member Standards ....................................................................................7

Frequently asked questions .............................................................................................8

Required Standards and deductibles ............................................................................9

Required Standards training tracking ........................................................................ 12



1

Leadership Member Standards
Advisory Standards

Leadership Advisory Standard 1—Open public 
meeting and public records training: The entire 
council, board, or commission and appointed records 
officers shall receive training on open public meetings, 
public records requests, and records retention within 
90 days of taking office, and should take refresher 
training every three years. This standard is advisory, 
however, please note that this training standard is 
required by Washington State Law (RCW 42.56.080 and 
40.14.040) Additionally, members are encouraged to 
attend legal updates as provided by RMSA.

Leadership Advisory Standard 2—RMSA 
orientation: The city/town administrator, the mayor, 
and the designated AWC RMSA contact should 
participate in an AWC RMSA program orientation 
within 90 days of joining the pool, or within 90 days of 
a new officials first day of service, which consists of an 
overview of claims reporting; grant, scholarship, and 
training opportunities; loss prevention inspections; 
and program administration.

Leadership Advisory Standard 3—Elected officials 
training: All newly elected or appointed mayors and 
councilmembers, board members, and commissioners 
should complete the AWC Elected Officials Essentials 
training within six months of taking office.

Leadership Advisory Standard 4—Disaster plan: 
The mayor, all department heads, and others identified 
with emergency management responsibilities should 
annually review the member’s disaster plan. The plan 
should also be tested annually by an emergency 
operation exercise such as a tabletop, sand table, full 
scale test of a part of the plan, or by an actual local 
emergency declaration.

Leadership Advisory Standard 5—Electronic 
communications policy: The member should adopt 
a policy addressing the member-related business 
use of electronic communication, including cell 
phones, computers, email, texting, and social media 
by elected officials, employees, and volunteers to 
ensure compliance with state public records retention 
requirements.

Contract and interlocal agreement review Member Standard
Advisory Standard

Contract and interlocal agreement review Advisory 
Standard 1—Approved contract language: 
Contracts and interlocal agreements where the 
member is the procurer of services should contain 
a third-party indemnification clause and insurance 
coverage provisions and should either use AWC 
RMSA’s pre-approved insurance and indemnification 
language or should be forwarded to the AWC RMSA 
for review of the indemnification and insurance 
language, in advance of adoption by the member’s 
governing body.



2

Crime Member Standards
Advisory Standards

Crime Advisory Standard 1—Credit card usage: 
The member’s legislative body should adopt and 
enforce a credit card use policy to provide guidance to 
individuals trusted to access and use the entity’s credit 
card(s). The credit card policy should include guidance 
for usage in the following areas: (a) who credit cards 
are distributed to, (b) the authorization and control of 
use of credit card funds, (c) the credit limits available, 
(d) payment of the bills, and (e) any other policy or 
procedure necessary to implement or administer the 
system under RCW 43.09.2855.

Crime Advisory Standard 2—Financial audits: The 
member should conduct scheduled and unscheduled 
management reviews of financial reports, such as 
exception reports targeted at specific risks. These 
reviews should include revenue and expense trends 
to identify any unusual fluctuations or purchases 
made outside of work hours and follow up should be 
completed on any discrepancies identified.

Required Standards

Crime Required Standard 1—Fraud 
prevention training: All member employees 
that handle or oversee the handling of public 
funds shall participate, on an annual basis, in 
RMSA-approved training regarding internal 
control systems to prevent or reduce fraud.

$1,000 deductible: If a crime related to the 
handling or management of public funds 
occurs and the member staff responsible 
for that incident and/or any other person 
involved in the internal control process has not 
completed the required training within the last 
12 months, a deductible will be applied to the 
loss.

*Crime Required Standard 2—Separation of 
duties: The member shall adopt and enforce a 
policy outlining the separation of financial duties 
to ensure that one person does not have the sole 
responsibility of receiving payments, making 
purchases on behalf of the entity, reconciling 
cash receipts, and overseeing the process. If the 
member has only one employee available for 
these duties, outsourcing should be used.

$1,000 deductible: If a crime related to the 
handling or management of public funds 
occurs and a separation of duties policy is not 
in place at the time that the loss is discovered, 
a deductible will be applied to the loss.

*New for 2023



3

Required Standards

Cyber security Required Standard 1—Cyber 
awareness training: All employees and elected 
officials who have access to their entity’s 
electronic systems or information shall complete 
at least one cyber security awareness related 
training (recognizing phishing emails, computer 
security basics, etc.) annually.

$1,000 deductible: If a cyber security 
related incident occurs and the member 
staff responsible for that incident has not 
completed a cyber security awareness training 
video/course within the last 12 months, a 
deductible will be applied to the loss.

Cyber security Required Standard 2—
Payment instructions verification: The member 
should develop and adopt a policy related to 
the verification of external financial payments 
to include a procedure to verify the authenticity 
of each payment request. This could include 
implementing a call-back verification process or a 
secondary verification by a second employee.

Coverage excluded: This is a direct 
requirement of RMSA’s cyber insurer to access 
coverage for social engineering fraud. Non-
compliance, in the form of failure to have 
such a procedure in place, or failure to follow 
such procedure, will void otherwise available 
coverage and result in coverage being 
excluded.

Advisory Standards

*Cyber security Advisory Standard 1—Join MS-
ISAC: The Multi-State Information Sharing and 
Analysis Center (MS-ISAC) is free to local governments 
and offers a variety of services including Incident 
Response.

*Cyber security Advisory Standard 2—Complete 
the NCSR assessment: The Nationwide Cybersecurity 
Review (NCSR) is a free assessment designed to gauge 
the strength of SLLT cybersecurity programs. It is 
sponsored by the Department of Homeland Security 
and MS-ISAC. The NCSR measures cyber preparedness, 
while also providing feedback and metrics to the 
governments who complete it.

*Cyber security Advisory Standard 3—Cyber 
hygiene: The member should adopt NLC’s Basic 
Cyber Hygiene practices including training, 
incident response plan, vulnerability management, 
wire authorization policies and network account 
management.

*New for 2023

Cyber security Member Standards
Note: Cyber security insurance coverage is dependent on specific mitigation measures taken by the member prior to the 
loss. Review RMSA cyber coverage agreement for specific requirements.



4

Driving Member Standards

Required Standard

Driving Required Standard 1—Defensive 
driver training: All drivers (employees and 
volunteers, including public safety and law 
enforcement) who operate member owned 
vehicles shall complete an AWC RMSA-approved 
defensive/distracted driving course before 
driving a member vehicle and at least every 
three years thereafter. Additionally, all drivers 
of emergency vehicles shall complete an EVOC/
EVIP training before driving a member vehicle 
and at least every three years thereafter. If 
the EVOC/EVIP course includes a defensive/ 
distracted driving component, that will satisfy 
the requirement.

$1,000 deductible: If an auto accident occurs 
and the operator of the member owned 
vehicle has not completed a defensive driving 
course or EVOC/EVIP course (as applicable) 
before having driven the vehicle or within the 
past three years, a deductible will be applied 
to the loss.

Advisory Standard

Driving Advisory Standard 1—Driver’s abstract: 
Members should have on file a driver’s abstract for 
all drivers who operate member-owned vehicles, 
including moveable equipment, and should obtain 
updated abstracts every three years.

*Driving Advisory Standard 2—Backing: All vehicles 
that are not factory-equipped with a back-up camera 
system should be retrofitted. Regardless of presence 
of back-up camera, there should be a backing policy 
and/or training in place that includes requiring drivers 
to use safe backing practices including use of a spotter 
with large vehicles or pre-backing walk arounds and 
turning head versus relying on mirrors.

*New for 2023



5

Employment practices Member Standards

Required Standards

Employment practices Required Standard 1— 
Review prior to personnel action: Prior to 
taking any personnel action that may result in 
termination of an employee, and/or notifying the 
employee of such final disposition, the member 
shall notify AWC RMSA and allow AWC RMSA to 
review the merits and risks of the termination 
and provide guidance at staff’s discretion.

$5,000 deductible: If a claim related to a 
termination is filed and the member had not 
previously contacted AWC RMSA and followed 
the guidance of staff, a deductible may apply 
at the discretion of the AWC RMSA claims staff.

Employment practices Required Standard 2—
Employment practices training: All employees 
with direct reports, elected officials, and all 
department heads shall complete at least one 
AWC RMSA- approved training course per year on 
an employment practices-related topic. Non-AWC 
RMSA sponsored trainings will require advance 
approval from AWC RMSA to apply.

$1,000 deductible: If a claim related to the 
conduct of an employee with direct reports, 
elected official, or department head is filed 
and that person has not completed an AWC 
RMSA- approved training course on an 
employment practices-related topic within the 
past year, a deductible will be applied to the 
loss.

Advisory Standard

Employment practices Advisory Standard 1—
Personnel policy review: Personnel policies and 
procedures should be reviewed at least every five 
years by an attorney who specializes in employment 
practices liability. When recommended, the personnel 
policies and procedures should be revised, and the 
changes communicated to all employees.



6

Land use Member Standards
Advisory Standard

Land use Advisory Standard 1—Land use training: 
The council and planning commission should 
complete training within six months of assuming 
responsibility for land use issues. This training should 
include a review of the moratorium process. A 
refresher training should be taken every four years.

Required Standard

Land use Required Standard 1—Review 
prior to moratorium: Prior to adoption of a 
new moratorium, or renewal of an existing 
moratorium, a member shall contact AWC RMSA 
prior to council action for review of the proposed 
moratorium by an AWC RMSA approved attorney.

$1,000 deductible: If a claim related to a 
land use moratorium is filed and the member 
had not previously contacted AWC RMSA and 
followed the guidance of staff, a deductible 
will be applied to the loss.

Required Standard

Law enforcement Required Standard 1—Use 
of force training: Commissioned officers and 
reserve officers shall annually complete training 
on the use of force policy adopted by the 
member.

$1,000 deductible: If an excessive use of force 
claim is filed, and the officer involved has not 
completed use of force training within the past 
year, a deductible will be applied to the loss.

Law enforcement Member Standard
Advisory Standard

*Law enforcement Advisory Standard 1—
CJTC training requirements: Law enforcement 
departments should follow the Criminal Justice 
Training Commission training standards for criminal 
justice professionals.

*New for 2023



7

Public works Member Standards

Required Standards

Public works Required Standard 1—
Sewer systems: The member shall retain 
documentation confirming routine inspections 
and/or cleaning in the past 12 months of their 
sanitary/stormwater sewer systems.

$1,000 deductible: If a claim is filed by a 
member not having inspected or cleaned 
some portion of their sanitary/stormwater 
sewer system within the past 12 months, a 
deductible will be applied to the loss.

Public works Required Standard 2—Service 
issue documentation: The member shall retain 
documentation confirming complaints and the 
member’s responses to complaints regarding 
issues and/or repairs needed for sidewalks and 
streets.

$1,000 deductible: If a claim is filed by a 
member not having documented a complaint 
or having properly responded to that 
complaint a deductible will be applied to the 
loss.

*Public works Required Standard 3—Repeat 
claims: The member shall address identifiable 
hazards or practices that result in a third-
party claim in order to avoid future similar 
losses. When feasible, either permanent or 
temporary mitigation measures will be instituted 
immediately upon notice of the claim. In 
situations where the cause of loss has been 
identified and has the potential to cause future 
potential damage, the member will apply a 
permanent remedy as soon as practicable.

$1,000 deductible: Member will be provided 
with written warning and timeframe to 
correct issue. If a repeat claim occurs after the 
provided timeframe, a deductible may apply at 
the discretion of the AWC RMSA claims staff.

*New for 2023

Advisory Standards

Public works Advisory Standard 1—Sign 
inspections: The member should retain 
documentation confirming annual inspections of 
regulatory and warning signs addressing retro- 
reflectivity, foliage overgrowth and needed repairs.

Public works Advisory Standard 2—Parks 
inspections: The member should retain 
documentation confirming annual inspections of 
parks and recreation facilities.

*Public works Advisory Standard 3—Securing of 
property against theft: All vehicles and portable high 
value items such as power tools should be secured 
when not in use. Work vehicles should be equipped 
with locking boxes or bed covers to secure tools when 
in the field. Items should not be left in view at any time 
when unattended and should not be left in vehicles 
overnight. Keys should never be left in an unattended 
vehicle.

*New for 2023



8

Frequently asked questions
Must we be fully compliant with the Member 
Standards?
Yes. AWC RMSA has had Member Standards in place 
since 2013 and all members are required to be in full 
compliance with the required Member Standards. 
Ideally, members are also in full compliance with 
the Advisory Member Standards, however lack of 
compliance with Advisory Standards does not carry 
a financial penalty. AWC RMSA staff can provide 
assistance in helping you comply with the Member 
Standards.

What if we can’t afford the resources needed to 
comply?
Most of the Member Standards requiring training can 
be completed for free using RMSA-U webinars, our 
on-site or regional trainings, or by taking advantage 
of AWC RMSA’s scholarship program, the loss control 
grants are specifically targeted to help with Member 
Standard compliance and AWC and RMSA can assist 
with finding other grants.

Do other risk pools have member standards?
Yes, and in many cases, they are more rigorous and 
expensive to comply with than the AWC RMSA 
Member Standards.

Does AWC RMSA have resources to help with 
meeting the Member Standards?
Yes. AWC RMSA has many free resources such as model 
polices, loss prevention guides, inspection forms, 
and training which can be used to help meet these 
standards. In addition, a personnel policies manual 
template is available using the free AWC RMSA HR 
Helpline.

Do the deductibles apply immediately to all of the 
Standards?
The deductibles only apply to the Required Member 
Standards, not to the Advisory Member Standards.

Who is responsible for maintaining the training 
records?
The member is responsible for maintaining training 
records.

Is it required for us to contact AWC RMSA prior to 
terminating an employee?
Yes. If a claim or lawsuit is filed, a deductible will apply 
if you did not contact AWC RMSA and allow AWC 
RMSA to review the merits and risks of the termination 
and provide guidance at staff’s discretion prior to 
taking an action which results in termination of an 
employee.

The AWC RMSA claims staff will determine if a 
deductible will be applied if staff’s guidance is not 
followed. AWC RMSA can provide free attorney 
services for employment matters. Our free pre-
litigation service is designed to reduce the potential 
liability of employment related matters.

Must we have AWC RMSA review all land use 
ordinances, moratorium, and/or proposed land use 
actions?
Yes. If a member adopts a new moratorium or 
renews an existing moratorium without allowing 
the moratorium to be reviewed by an AWC RMSA-
approved attorney prior to council action or adoption 
and a claim or lawsuit is filed, a deductible will apply. 
However, AWC RMSA’s free pre-litigation service can 
help members identify if adopting or extending a land 
use moratorium is a prudent course of action.

Are we required to send all contracts and interlocal 
agreements to AWC RMSA before we approve and 
sign?
No. AWC RMSA is happy to review the insurance and 
indemnification portions of contracts and agreements 
to protect our members’ interest. AWC RMSA can 
provide standard insurance and indemnification 
language which you can incorporate into your 
contracts and agreements.

Does the contract review standard include labor 
agreements?
No. AWC RMSA does not review your labor or 
collective bargaining agreements. These should be 
reviewed by an attorney with expertise in employment 
practices, labor, and/or collective bargaining.



9

When AWC RMSA members are in compliance with all of the required Member Standards, deductibles will not apply 
to claims which may arise. It is when a member is out of compliance that the following deductibles will be applied.

Crime Required Standards
Crime Required Standard 1—Fraud prevention training $1,000 deductible
All member employees that handle or oversee the handling of 
public funds shall participate, on an annual basis, in RMSA-approved 
training regarding internal control systems to prevent or reduce 
fraud.

If a crime related to the handling or 
management of public funds occurs and 
the member staff responsible for that 
incident and/or any other person involved 
in the internal control process has not 
completed the required training within the 
last 12 months, a deductible will be applied 
to the loss.

Crime Required Standard 2—Separation of duties $1,000 deductible
The member shall adopt and enforce a policy outlining the 
separation of financial duties to ensure that one person does 
not have the sole responsibility of receiving payments, making 
purchases on behalf of the entity, reconciling cash receipts, and 
overseeing the process. If the member has only one employee 
available for these duties, outsourcing should be used.

If a crime related to the handling or 
management of public funds occurs and a 
separation of duties policy is not in place 
at the time that the loss is discovered, a 
deductible will be applied to the loss.

Cyber security Required Standards
Cyber security Required Standard 1—Cyber awareness training $1,000 deductible
All employees and elected officials who have access to their entity’s 
electronic systems or information shall complete at least one cyber 
security awareness related training (recognizing phishing emails, 
computer security basics, etc.) annually.

If a cyber security related incident occurs 
and the member staff responsible for that 
incident has not completed a cyber security 
awareness training video/course within the 
last 12 months, a deductible will be applied 
to the loss.

Cyber security Required Standard 2— 
Payment instructions verification
The member should develop and adopt a policy related to the 
verification of external financial payments to include a procedure 
to verify the authenticity of each payment request. This could 
include implementing a call-back verification process or a secondary 
verification by a second employee.

Coverage excluded: This is a direct 
requirement of RMSA’s cyber insurer to 
access coverage for social engineering 
fraud. Non-compliance, in the form of 
failure to have such a procedure in place, or 
failure to follow such procedure, will void 
otherwise available coverage and result in 
coverage being excluded.

Required Standards and deductibles



10

Required Standards and deductibles
Driving Required Standard
Driving Required Standard 1—Defensive driver training $1,000 deductible
All drivers (employees and volunteers, including public safety 
and law enforcement) who operate member owned vehicles shall 
complete an AWC RMSA-approved defensive/distracted driving 
course before driving a member vehicle and at least every three 
years thereafter. Additionally, all drivers of emergency vehicles shall 
complete an EVOC/EVIP training before driving a member vehicle 
and at least every three years thereafter. If the EVOC/EVIP course 
includes a defensive/ distracted driving component, that will satisfy 
the requirement.

If an auto accident occurs and the operator 
of the member owned vehicle has not 
completed a defensive driving course or 
EVOC/EVIP course (as applicable) before 
having driven the vehicle or within the past 
three years, a deductible will be applied to 
the loss.

Employment practices Required Standards
Employment practices Required Standard 1— 
Review prior to personnel action

$5,000 deductible

Prior to taking any personnel action that may result in termination 
of an employee, and/or notifying the employee of such final 
disposition, the member shall notify AWC RMSA and allow AWC 
RMSA to review the merits and risks of the termination and provide 
guidance at staff’s discretion.

If a claim related to a termination is filed 
and the member had not previously 
contacted AWC RMSA and followed the 
guidance of staff, a deductible may apply at 
the discretion of the AWC RMSA claims staff.

Employment practices Required Standard 2— 
Employment practices training

$1,000 deductible

All employees with direct reports, elected officials, and all 
department heads shall complete at least one AWC RMSA- approved 
training course per year on an employment practices-related topic. 
Non-AWC RMSA sponsored trainings will require advance approval 
from AWC RMSA to apply.

If a claim related to the conduct of an 
employee with direct reports, elected 
official, or department head is filed and 
that person has not completed an AWC 
RMSA- approved training course on an 
employment practices-related topic within 
the past year, a deductible will be applied to 
the loss.

Land use Required Standard
Land use Required Standard 1—Review prior to moratorium $1,000 deductible
Prior to adoption of a new moratorium, or renewal of an existing 
moratorium, a member shall contact AWC RMSA prior to council 
action for review of the proposed moratorium by an AWC RMSA 
approved attorney.

If a claim related to a land use moratorium 
is filed and the member had not previously 
contacted AWC RMSA and followed the 
guidance of staff, a deductible will be 
applied to the loss.



11

Law enforcement Required Standard
Law enforcement Required Standard 1—Use of force training $1,000 deductible
Commissioned officers and reserve officers shall annually complete 
training on the use of force policy adopted by the member.

If an excessive use of force claim is filed, 
and the officer involved has not completed 
use of force training within the past year, a 
deductible will be applied to the loss.

Public works Required Standards
Public works Required Standard 1—Sewer systems $1,000 deductible
The member shall retain documentation confirming routine 
inspections and/or cleaning in the past 12 months of their sanitary/
stormwater sewer systems.

If a claim is filed by a member not having 
inspected or cleaned some portion of their 
sanitary/stormwater sewer system within 
the past 12 months, a deductible will be 
applied to the loss.

Public works Required Standard 2— 
Service issue documentation

$1,000 deductible

The member shall retain documentation confirming complaints 
and the member’s responses to complaints regarding issues and/or 
repairs needed for sidewalks and streets.

If a claim is filed by a member not having 
documented a complaint or having properly 
responded to that complaint a deductible 
will be applied to the loss.

Public works Required Standard 3—Repeat claims $1,000 deductible
The member shall address identifiable hazards or practices that 
result in a third-party claim in order to avoid future similar losses. 
When feasible, either permanent or temporary mitigation measures 
will be instituted immediately upon notice of the claim. In situations 
where the cause of loss has been identified and has the potential to 
cause future potential damage, the member will apply a permanent 
remedy as soon as practicable.

Member will be provided with written 
warning and timeframe to correct issue. 
If a repeat claim occurs after the provided 
timeframe, a deductible may apply at the 
discretion of the AWC RMSA claims staff.



12

Required Standards training tracking
Crime – Due once per year

Cyber security – Due once per year

Employee driving – Due every three years

EVOC/EVIP driving – Due every three years

Employment training – Due once per year

Law enforcement – Due once per year

Name Position/Title Course completed Member 
Standard fulfilled

Date 
completed

Date next 
due



13

Name Position/Title Course completed Member 
Standard fulfilled

Date 
completed

Date next 
due





CITIES INSURANCE ASSOCIATION 
OF WASHINGTON

PREMIUM INDICATION

CIAW
12/30/2024           Premium Indication 1

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

The terms, conditions, and exclusions shown here are brief overviews included in, but not limited to, the 
coverages provided by the Cities Insurance Association of Washington. The terms and conditions offered 
may differ from your prior policy and from what you requested in your submission. This document is not 
intended to be used as a direct reflection of all coverages or to replace or alter the Memorandum of Coverage 
in any way. Information represented in this Coverage Indication is subject to the exclusions, terms, 
limitations, and conditions of the Memorandum of Coverage. All specific coverage, exclusion, and limitation 
questions should be referred directly to the Memorandum of Coverage and all attached endorsements. In 
the event of differences, the Memorandum of Coverage will prevail. Participating companies are non-
admitted, unless otherwise stated. Non-admitted companies are not regulated by the Washington State 
Insurance Commissioner and are not protected by the Washington State Guaranty Fund. All surplus lines 
filings on any excess and surplus lines policies, if applicable, will be filed on behalf of CIAW by Apex 
Insurance Agency, Inc. or Peachtree Risk Broker, LLC. The Memorandum of Coverage is subject to audit. 
Defense costs are outside the limits, unless excess limits are purchased.  Defense costs are inside the limits 
for members with excess liability limits scheduled on file with the company. For claims made coverages, a 
copy of the Extended Reporting Period MOC language is available upon request. 

It is the responsibility of the broker or Covered Member to review this document to confirm its accuracy. 

Applicant:
Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District

22722 19 Avenue S
Des Moines, WA, 98198

Broker:

Coverage Period: 1/1/2025 to 12/1/2025

The following is a Premium Indication based on coverages selected by the Board of Directors.

Administered by Clear Risk Solutions



CIAW
12/30/2024           Premium Indication 2

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 

CITIES INSURANCE ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON
Premium Indication

Please note: The premium indicated below is a non-binding cost estimate only based on the information 
provided to date. Formal proposal is subject to receipt of a complete application, currently valued 5-year 
loss history, Statement of Values, Vehicle and Miscellaneous Equipment Schedules including values, and 
Underwriting approval. Please see list of all required underwriting information below.

** Underwriting approval required prior to releasing a formal proposal**

CIAW Coverage Term: 12/01/2024 – 12/01/2025

Annualized Premium: $49,724

Note:  If applicable, the fee charged by your insurance broker will be in addition to the cost shown above.

Proposed Effective Date: 1/1/2025

Please note the premium indicated is an annual premium. The program has a common Coverage 
effective date of December 1. The actual premium will be pro-rated from your coverage effective date to 
December 1. This cost estimate is presented as an indication only. Finalization of the premiums and 
coverages is pending the receipt of all requested underwriting information, including 5-year currently 
valued loss history, and the approval of the reinsurance companies.

As a member of the program you will be required to sign a Member Agreement.

This Premium Indication is for marketing and discussion purposes only and should not be 
considered a formal proposal.

Indication Valid Until 1/29/2025, 12:01 am

Outstanding items required for formal proposal (additional subjectivities may be required prior 
to binding):
 
1.    Please provide the following:
   •    CIAW General Application – Signed & Dated
   •    Facility Use Agreement (3rd Party Renters)
   •    Cowbell App
2. In regard to the 2023 pool assessment & feasibility study, has there been any improvement's 
to the following findings:
   • Architectural Evaluation  16 findings
   • Civil Evaluation  6 findings
   • Building Exterior Observations  11 findings
   • Any upgrades to the roof? 





 Quote 
 .................................................................................................................................................................... PROTECTION 

  Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
  March 14, 2025 

 
The following quote is provided to Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District.  Membership in the Enduris Pool 
is contingent upon a completed application package and final underwriting approval.  

If Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park Dist chooses to join Enduris, a commitment to remain in the Pool for one 
policy year is required with a 60-day notice to withdraw.  The Enduris policy year begins September 1 and ends 
August 31.  Enduris can bind coverage upon receiving a completed and signed application.  If you decide to join 
mid-term, the Enduris Annual Member Contribution will be prorated through August 31, 2025. 

 Type of Coverage Limit Quote  

General Liability (Based on 24,396 hours) $20,000,000 $33,191 

Public Officials Errors and Omissions Liability $20,000,000 Included 

Employment Practices Liability $20,000,000 Included 

Automobile Liability $20,000,000 Included 

Automobile Physical Damage Schedule $0 

Property – Blanket Coverage (Replacement Cost) $6,265,472 $24,905 

Equipment Breakdown, Boiler, and Machinery $6,265,472 Included 

Crime – Blanket Coverage $50,000 $510 

Identity Theft $25,000 Included 

Cyber Coverage $2,000,000 Included 

Prior Acts Coverage $4,000,000 Included 

MRSC Unlimited Access Included 

Employment Law Legal Consultations  Included 

Pre-Claim Defense Program  Included 

 ANNUAL MEMBER CONTRIBUTION  $58,606 

 

This proposal is not a coverage document. It is intended as a summary. Please consult the Enduris Memorandum 
of Coverage for actual policy language, conditions, and exclusions.  This quote is valid for 30 days. 

This quote is pending final underwriting approval from reinsurance.  This quote is not bindable until final 
authorization is communicated. 



 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:  7b      Assigned to: District G.M.  Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under:    Old Business                           Attachment:     None  
 
Subject: Land Acquisition Process Update 
 
Background/Summary:  
The Mount Rainier Pool will be 50 years old on September 15, 2025. The pool was built as part 
of the Forward Thrust Movement. Most pools that were built during that time have been 
replaced with new facilities, no longer operate, or are looking at major remodeling or 
replacement. 
 
The Board of Commissioners is exploring all alternatives including how much land acquisition 
would be in the area, and what processed will need to be put in place for future discussions. 
 
The District General Manager will give the board an update on his research into these 
processes. 
 
(Update) The District General Manager met with representatives of WSDOT on the 216th 
property. Also discussed was providing the pool district with an updated list of available 
properties in the area, and a formal process for working with them to obtain land. At the time of 
distributing this agenda, the information had not yet been delivered, but if it is made before the 
meeting, it will be introduced to be added to the agenda. If not, it will be added to a future 
regular meeting agenda. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time.  
 
Proposed Motion:  
No motion. Informational only. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes        No___X ____ Date:      N/A      
 
Three Touch Rule:                              Committee Review 
    ___Continuous_____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ___N/A ______ Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  No ___ x ____ Report back date: ___________  
 
Notes:  
- No attachments 
 



 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:  7c      Assigned to: District G.M.       Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under:    Old Business                           Attachment:     None  
 
Subject: Highline School District Meeting Update 
 
Background/Summary:  
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District and Highline School District are attempting to 
coordinate a meeting to discuss the lease, grant applications and the future of the Mount Rainier 
Pool. 
 
The District GM will give an update on the process. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time.  
 
Proposed Motion:  
No motion. Informational only. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes        No___X ____ Date:      N/A      
 
Three Touch Rule:                              Committee Review 
    ___Continuous_____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ___N/A ______ Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  No ___ x ____ Report back date: ___________  
 
Notes:  
- No attachments 
 



 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
  
Agenda Item #:  7d      Assigned to: District G.M.       Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under:    Old Business                           Attachment:     Yes   
 
Subject: Current Grants Update 
 
Background/Summary:  
The purpose of this agenda item sheet (AIS) is to discuss current and future grant projects. 
 
Currently, the Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District has two capital grant projects for 2025 
KCYAS Aquatic Facilities Grant for $213k and a $1.451m Best Starts for Kids, and one grant for 
programming of $10k through the Get Active, Stay active program for youth drop-in swimming 
between now and August 31. All grants are administered by King County Parks. 
 
The grant tracker has been updated to information that had been received on or before March 
16, 2025. This includes grant covenant changes, and updated numbers on the Get Active, Stay 
Active grant. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
 
Proposed Motion:  
No motion. Informational only. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes        No___X ____ Date:      N/A      
 
Three Touch Rule:                              Committee Review 
    ___Continuous_____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ___N/A ______ Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  No ___ x ____ Report back date: ___________  
 
Notes:  
- Status attachment of all grants (ppt) 
- Covenant Emails and Paperwork Updates 
- Get Active, Stay Active Grant Usage through March 16, 2025 
 







1 of 2

Monday, March 17, 2025 at 15:36:53 Pacific Daylight TimeMonday, March 17, 2025 at 15:36:53 Pacific Daylight TimeMonday, March 17, 2025 at 15:36:53 Pacific Daylight TimeMonday, March 17, 2025 at 15:36:53 Pacific Daylight Time

Subject:Subject:Subject:Subject: RE: Mount Rainier Pool Grant
Date:Date:Date:Date: Monday, March 17, 2025 at 1:09:02 PM Pacific Daylight Time
From:From:From:From: Hirschi, Elise
To:To:To:To: Ellie Daneshnia
CC:CC:CC:CC: Alexandra Novotny, Scott Deschenes
Attachments:Attachments:Attachments:Attachments: image001.png, image002.png, Notice of Grant template 2025.docx

Hi Ellie,
Nice chatting with you today. Attached is our Notice of Grant template. Please review and let me know if
HSD would be amenable to signing an agreement like this in order to protect the facility for public use.
Please also include language as to why a waiver of the restrictive covenant is necessary.
 
Copying Scott for full transparency.
 
Feel free to call or email me if any further questions arise.
Elise
 
 

    
Elise Hirschi (she/her/hers)
Grant Manager, Parks & Recreation Division
King County Department of Natural Resources and Parks
E: ehirschi@kingcounty.gov
P: 206-849-9107
Book a meeting with me!

 

 
 
From:From:From:From: Ellie Daneshnia <ellie.daneshnia@highlineschools.org>
Sent:Sent:Sent:Sent: Friday, March 14, 2025 11:22 AM
To:To:To:To: Hirschi, Elise <ehirschi@kingcounty.gov>
Cc:Cc:Cc:Cc: Alexandra Novotny <Alexandra.Novotny@highlineschools.org>
Subject:Subject:Subject:Subject: Mount Rainier Pool Grant
Importance:Importance:Importance:Importance: High
 
[EXTERNAL Email Notice! ] External communication is important to us. Be cautious of phishing attempts. Do not
click or open suspicious links or attachments.

Hi Elise,
 
This is Ellie from Highline School District. I’m reaching out to see if you could provide me with
the name of your legal counsel member. I’d like to have our Highline School District counsel
connect with them regarding the covenant clause in the grant for Mount Rainier Pool.
 
Would you be able to share a contact we can work with to reach an agreement? Your support
would be greatly appreciated.



2 of 2

 
Thank you,
 
Ellie Daneshnia Ellie Daneshnia Ellie Daneshnia Ellie Daneshnia 
Highline Public SchoolHighline Public SchoolHighline Public SchoolHighline Public School
Executive Director of Capital Planning & ConstructionExecutive Director of Capital Planning & ConstructionExecutive Director of Capital Planning & ConstructionExecutive Director of Capital Planning & Construction
Ellie.daneshnia@highlineschools.org
17810 817810 817810 817810 8thththth AVE S. BLDG A. Burien, WA 98148 AVE S. BLDG A. Burien, WA 98148 AVE S. BLDG A. Burien, WA 98148 AVE S. BLDG A. Burien, WA 98148
Tel: Tel: Tel: Tel: (206) 631 7575(206) 631 7575(206) 631 7575(206) 631 7575   Cell:    Cell:    Cell:    Cell: (206) 591-9580(206) 591-9580(206) 591-9580(206) 591-9580

 





NOTICE OF GRANT 
 
 

When Recorded Return to: 
 
King County 
Department of Natural Resources and Parks 
Parks and Recreation Division 
201 S Jackson Street, KSC-NR-5702 
Seattle, WA 98104-3855 
 
 
 

GRANTOR:     «Organization_Name» 

GRANTEE: King County, a political subdivision of the State 
of Washington 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Legal Description 
 
ASSESSOR’S TAX PARCEL NO.: List the parcel number(s) associated with this project 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NOTICE OF GRANT 

This Notice of Grant is effective as of the ___ day of __________, 202_, and is made 
and executed by «Organization_Name» (“Grant Recipient”), and by and in favor of King 
County (the “County”), a political subdivision of the State of Washington (the “County”). 
In this Notice of Grant, Grant Recipient and the County may also be referred to 
collectively as the “Parties” and individually as “Party.” 

____________________ is/are the owner(s) (the “Property Owner”) of the property(ies) 
in King County, State of Washington (the “Property”), legally described and attached 
hereto in Exhibit A 

Pursuant to the Grant Agreement, between the King County and the Grant Recipient, 
attached hereto as Exhibit B, the Grant Recipient constructed a Facility Improvement 
(“Facility”) on the Property for the purpose of providing recreation for the public. A map 
of the Property and Facility is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

The Grant Recipient hereby agrees to be bound by the terms of the Grant Agreement 
including the obligation to ensure public access to the Facility. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, «Organization_Name» and King County have executed this 
Notice of Grant on the date set forth above.  

KING COUNTY 
 
 
 

 «Organization_Name» 

Signature 
 
 

 Signature 

NAME (Please type or print), Title 
 
 

 NAME (Please type or print), Title 
 
 

Date  Date 
 

  



 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF KING    ) 
 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ____________________ is 
the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed 
this instrument, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument 
and acknowledged it as the ____________________ of the GRANT RECIPIENT 
organization, to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes 
mentioned in the instrument.  
 
 Dated:  ___________________ 
 
      ________________________________ 
      NOTARY PUBLIC 

Print Name:  _____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ___________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF KING    ) 
 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ____________________ is 
the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed 
this instrument, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument 
and acknowledged it as the ______________________________________________ 
of KING COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Washington, to be the free and 
voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument.  
 
 Dated:  ___________________ 
 
      ________________________________ 
      NOTARY PUBLIC 

Print Name:  _____________________ 
My Commission Expires: ___________ 

 

 



NOTICE OF GRANT 
EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
Legal Description 

 
 
 

  



NOTICE OF GRANT 
EXHIBIT B – GRANT AGREEMENT 

  



NOTICE OF GRANT 
EXHIBIT C – PROPERTY/FACILITY MAP 

 
 
 

 

 







KIDS SWIM FREE GRANT UPDATE (2/1-3/16/2025)
Resident Non-Resident Resident Non-Resident Resident Non-Resident

Feb (All days)* 117 72 13 12 0 2 216 214%
Mar 1-16 117 53 15 8 3 3 199 249%

TOTAL USAGE 415 229%

Resident Non-Resident Resident Non-Resident Resident Non-Resident
Feb (All days)* N/A N/A 80 19 2 0 101
Mar 1-16 N/A N/A 60 17 1 2 80

TOTAL USAGE 181
Does Youth Grant Affect Adult Usage of the Pool? More affordable to swim with kids?

Resident Non-Resident Resident Non-Resident
Feb (All days)* 57 24 76 54
Mar 1-16 52 14 45 46
Subtotals 109 38 131 110
TOTALS 147 241

164% INCREASE

TOTAL GRANREVENUE THRU MARCH 16 1,705.25$               

REMAINING GRANT BALANCE (8,294.75)$             

*There were three days that grant was not properly addressed by front desk staff in February.

% Increase

2024 2025ADULT (19-61)

Kids Swim Free Grant Paid (Don't Give Name) Under 32025 TOTALS

2024 Kids Swim Free Grant Paid (Don't Give Name) Under 3 TOTALS



 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:  7e      Assigned to: District G.M.       Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under:    Old Business                           Attachment:     Yes   
 
Subject: 2025 Grant Application 
 
Background/Summary:  
The District General Manager is working with MacDonald Miller and the project manager to put 
together an application for King County Aquatic Facilities grant to repair the electrical systems 
for the pool. This is the third of three critical systems that were identified by the conditions 
assessment. Although there are other issues that we should address future grants upon: ADA, 
locker room plumbing, etc.; this is a critical area as many of the electric panels and wiring are 
from the 1970s. The system powers updated systems, computers, phone systems and other 
critical systems that are required to operate the pool. 
 
The district is applying for an Aquatic Facilities Grant will cover 100% of up to $100,000, and 
50% of $101,000 to $2,000,000. The grant application will cover the electrical systems that were 
identified in the most-recent conditions assessment.  
 
The deadline for the grant was March 31, 2025, but has been extended to April 3, 2025, to avoid 
Ramadan. 
 
The District GM is awaiting an estimate from MacDonald Miller that will be used for the grant 
application. 
 
Highline School District’s Capital Planning and Construction Department will also be helping 
review and potentially provide a letter of support for the project. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
 
Proposed Motion:  
No motion. Informational only. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes        No___X ____ Date:      N/A      
 
Three Touch Rule:                              Committee Review 
    ___Continuous_____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ___N/A ______ Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  No ___ x ____ Report back date: ___________  
  



 

 
Notes:  
- 2025 King County Parks Aquatic Facilities Grant 
- 2023 Mount Rainier Pool Conditions Assessment (link) 
 



KingCounty.gov

PARKS GRANTS < /EN/DEPT/DNRP/NATURE-RECREATION/PARKS-RECREATION/KING-COUNTY-PARKS/GRANTS> /  2025 PARKS GRANTS GUIDE

MORE APPLICANT RESOURCES

2025 Applicant Resources < https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:f:/t/DNRPa/EkbG9ePFf89OlygHymGb6lABRdYnuF2Wl81-Hx-FvhT0KQ?

e=U7za4Y>

2025 Parks Grant Guide < https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:b:/t/DNRPa/EYzcttm_LCVLkFbfBSuxdbQBTaiKZWbHjArBZWiCUPsvGA?

e=u0Lr6B>  (designed)

2025 Parks Grants FAQ < https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:b:/t/DNRPa/EUzzWM2F06pOs4qlbCXXg18BCp-ynyndm-lnsj2bR2VuXA?

e=LMj75Z>

2025 Application Previews and Evaluation Criteria <

https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:f:/t/DNRPa/EkHFBM66EgJGoH2TWEh6T3ABAz4ZJBrKh_uS1CQBNEdylg?e=td7x0c>

Table of Contents

(links go to other locations on this page)

About King County Parks < #aboutparks>

The 2020-2025 Parks Levy

Public Access

Equity in King County

2025 Grants Overview < #2025overview>

Grant Program Summaries

Aquatic Facilities < #aquatics>

Parks Capital and Open Space < #pcos>

Open Space River Corridors < #rivers>

Healthy Communities and Parks Fund < #hcpf>

Youth and Amateur Sports Grants < #yasg>

Timelines < #timelines>

Applying for a Grant < #applying>

The Application Process

Application Previews

Grant Evaluation < #evaluation>

The Evaluation Process

Evaluation Criteria

Applicant Resources < #resources>

Information Sessions

Grant Application Consulting

Office Hours

Grantee Toolkit

Contact Us < #contact>



Page 2 of 12

About King County Parks < >

The 2020-2025 Parks Levy

King County Parks is largely funded through a property tax levy, which the voters of King County approved in August 2019 by more than 70
percent. The 2020 – 2025 King County Parks, Recreation, Trails, and Open Space Levy < https://kingcounty.gov/services/parks-
recreation/parks/about/levy.aspx>  generates an estimated $810 million over six years to pursue the following goals:

1. Take care of King County’s existing system of parks and trails, ensuring the system remains clean, safe, and open.

2. Grow and connect regional open space and natural lands to protect habitat important for fish and wildlife and to provide recreation

opportunities.

3. Improve regional trails and mobility to ensure that essential connections are completed and existing trails are maintained.

4. Make parks, green spaces, and recreation opportunities more accessible for all King County residents to enjoy.

Public Access

Public access or public benefit is a contractual requirement of projects funded by King County Parks grants.

Equity in King County

King County Parks seeks to invest in projects that make parks, green spaces, and recreation opportunities more accessible for King County
residents. Parks also aims to use a pro-equity lens in grantmaking to prioritize funding for projects that not only improve health outcomes
and reduce disparities in underserved communities, but which are led by those communities being addressed.

2025 Grants Overview < >

King County Parks will be accepting applications for all our grant programs in 2025 through two Request for Applications (RFA) cycles. The

first will be for our four Levy Grant programs and the second will be for our Youth and Amateur Sports Grants. See below for more details

on each grant program, timeline, and funding available:

Levy Grants RFA - Applications open Monday, February 24 and are due Thursday, April 3, 2025 at 9:00 a.m.

Aquatic Facilities: $16.0 million available in funding for 2025; Awards up to $5 million

Parks Capital and Open Space: $6.6 million available in funding for 2025; Awards up to $1 million 

Open Space - River Corridors: $6.7 million available in funding for 2025; Awards up to $1 million 

Healthy Communities and Parks Fund: $1.4 million available in funding for 2025; Awards up to $250,000

Youth and Amateur Sports Grants RFA - Applications open Monday, April 7 and are due Monday, May 5, 2025 at 9:00 a.m.

~$3.5 million available funding in 2024; Awards up to $250,000 for construction and $100,000 for programs

GO TO APPLICANT GRANT PORTAL < HTTPS://WWW.GRANTINTERFACE.COM/HOME/LOGON?

URLKEY=KINGCOUNTYPARKS>

Note: Funds for Parks grant awards are delivered on a reimbursement basis and projects must be under agreement before project spending

or invoicing begin. Grantees will not be reimbursed for costs incurred prior to a fully executed contract with King County.



Aquatic Facilities Program Summary < >

Aquatic Facilities: Grant Purpose

The Aquatic Facilities grant program helps communities preserve and increase public access to public pools as our region grows and existing
facilities become obsolete or reach capacity. This grant program funds activities related to the renovation or expansion of existing facilities,
or construction of new aquatic facilities in King County.

The Aquatics grant program has: $36 million in total funding 2020-2025 and $16.0 million in available funding in 2025; a maximum award
amount of $5 million. 

Award Details:

Planning or feasibility studies awards are capped at $100,000

Awards up to $100,000 can cover the full cost of a project

Awards between $100,001 and $2 million are capped at 50% of project costs

Awards between $2 million and $5 million are capped at 25% of project costs

Eligible Organizations

City or Town

School District

Park District

Other public entities that own public aquatic facilities

Eligible Project Types

Acquisition (see FAQ for more information)

Feasibility Study

Planning and Design

Construction

Examples of Possible Projects

Below are examples of projects that may be funded. This list is not all-inclusive. All grant applicants for this program must ensure that
public access is provided.

Development of a new aquatic facility

Renovation or repair of an existing aquatic facility

Expansion of an existing aquatic facility

Projects Not Funded by This Program

Projects that do not align with the goals of this grant program may include, but are not limited to:

Spray parks (funded under the Parks Capital and Open Space program)

Public swim beaches

Non-aquatic related infrastructure located within a multi-use community center

Routine operation and maintenance costs



Page 4 of 12

Aquatic Facilities Background

Aquatics is one of four grant programs created by the 2020 – 2025 Parks levy, which allocates approximately $110 million through the life

of the levy to funding these grant programs.

Click here to view previously awarded projects. < https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:x:/t/DNRPa/EblyXNEzP5tMjc_NsSUXYrwBJ0jS-

pSZ6tjgvfJVWlA6-A?e=8sEw7O>

Parks Capital and Open Space Program Summary < >

Parks Capital and Open Space Grant Purpose

The Parks Capital and Open Space grant program supports a range of projects that expand and improve recreation opportunities for the
region’s growing population, including the development of active and passive recreation and trail facilities, and the acquisition of open
space for future public parks.

The PCOS grant program has: $25 million in total funding 2020-2025 and $6.6 million in available funding in 2025; a maximum award
amount of $1 million. 

Eligible Organizations

City or Town

Park District

Eligible Project Types

Acquisition (see FAQ for more information)

Feasibility Study

Planning and Design

Construction

Examples of Possible Projects

Below are examples of projects that may be funded. This list is not all-inclusive. All grant applicants for this program must ensure that
public access is provided.

Land acquisition for a new park

Trails and paths (hard or soft) and related feature such as habitat restoration, bridges, boardwalks, signage, restrooms, benches, lighting

Indoor or outdoor sports recreation spaces like sports courts, sports fields, rowing facilities, climbing structures, playgrounds, spray parks,
or community gardens

Projects Not Funded by This Program

Projects that do not align with the goals of this grant program may include, but are not limited to:

Concessionaire buildings

Environmental cleanup of illegal activities (i.e., removal of derelict vessels, trash, methamphetamine labs, etc.)

Properties acquired via condemnation action of any kind

Specific projects or actions identified as mitigation

Routine operation and maintenance costs



Parks Capital and Open Space Background

PCOS is one of four grant programs created by the 2020 – 2025 Parks levy, which allocates approximately $110 million through the life of

the levy to funding these grant programs.

Click here to view previously awarded projects. < https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:x:/t/DNRPa/EblyXNEzP5tMjc_NsSUXYrwBJ0jS-

pSZ6tjgvfJVWlA6-A?e=8sEw7O>

Open Space - River Corridors Program Summary < >

Open Space - River Corridors Grant Purpose

The Open Space – River Corridors grant program supports projects that help restore the natural functions of rivers, create or restore public
access, and/or increase public awareness of river corridors as valuable natural resources. This grant program incentivizes multi-benefit
projects that integrate recreation and habitat restoration with larger floodplain management efforts.

The PCOS grant program has: $22 million in total funding 2020-2025 and $6.7 million in available funding in 2025; a maximum award
amount of $1 million.

All projects must be located within King County and be associated with one or more of the following rivers: Cedar; Duwamish;
Green; Raging; Sammamish; Snoqualmie; South Fork Skykomish; Tolt; White. 

Eligible Organizations

City or Town

King County Agency

Port, Flood, Conservation, or Diking and Drainage Districts

Salmon recovery forums

Nonprofit Organization

Tribal Organization

Eligible Project Types

Acquisition (see FAQ for more information)

Feasibility Study

Planning and Design

Construction

Project-specific outreach and education

Examples of Possible Projects

Below are examples of projects that may be funded. This list is not all-inclusive. All grant applicants for this program must ensure that
public access is provided.

Restoration of natural floodplain systems by removal or setback of flood protection features such as levees, revetments, etc.

Development of passive recreation amenities along rivers, such as trails, viewpoints, interpretative signage, etc.

Enhancement of ecological function through invasive species removal, native species revegetation, or the installation of critical habitat
features

Land acquisition for future natural areas or protect and restore habitat function

Outreach and educational programs associated with capital projects to increase public awareness and local community engagement



Page 6 of 12

Projects Not Funded by This Program

Projects that do not align with the goals of this grant program may include, but are not limited to:

Active recreation facilities such as play areas or ballfields

Fish or wildlife production facilities

Indoor facilities such as swimming pools, community centers, museums, interpretive and environmental centers

Routine operation and maintenance costs

Legally mandated clean-up or costs of required mitigation actions not associated with the approved project

Open Space - River Corridors Background

OSRC is one of four grant programs created by the 2020 – 2025 Parks levy, which allocates approximately $110 million through the life of

the levy to funding these grant programs.

Click here to view previously awarded projects. < https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:x:/t/DNRPa/EblyXNEzP5tMjc_NsSUXYrwBJ0jS-

pSZ6tjgvfJVWlA6-A?e=8sEw7O>

Healthy Communities and Parks Fund Program Summary < >

Healthy Communities and Parks Fund Grant Purpose

The Healthy Communities and Parks Fund (HCPF), also called the Targeted Equity Grants program, supports projects that increase access to
recreation and use of parks, open spaces, and recreational facilities in underserved areas and communities. This grant program intends to
reduce health disparities in various underserved communities and invest in their capacities to meet the unique needs of their residents.

Tier 1 offers awards up to $15,000. Award recommendations do not require approval by the King County Executive or Council.

Tier 2 offers awards between $15,000 and $250,000. Applications are reviewed by an Advisory Committee and must be approved by the
King County Executive and Council.

The HCPF grant program has: $10 million in total funding 2020-2025 and $1.4 million in available funding in 2025; a maximum award
amount of $250,000. An additional application will be available in  2025.

All projects must occur within King County and serve King County residents.

Eligible Organizations

City or Town

Nonprofit Organization

Tribal Organization

Fiscally-sponsored Organization

Eligible Project Types

Acquisition (see FAQ for more information)

Feasibility Study

Planning and Design

Construction

Programs

Capacity Building



Examples of Possible Projects

Below are examples of projects that may be funded. This list is not all-inclusive. All grant applicants for this program must ensure that
public access is provided.

Projects that provide or improve access to recreation, parks, or open spaces for people with disabilities or other underserved
communities

Capacity building to engage community in outreach and planning around new or improved access to recreation, parks, and open/green
spaces, in and for underserved communities

Recreation activities and programs, such as: Aquatics Programs; Exercise and Fitness Programs; Individual and Team Sports Programs;
Camping and Outdoor Recreation Programs; Arts and Cultural Activities; Environmental Stewardship Programs; Park Activation and
Events; Nutrition and Food Justice Programs

Projects Not Funded by This Program

Projects that do not align with the goals of this grant program may include, but are not limited to:

Lobbying and attempts to influence legislation

Removal of unauthorized encampments

Properties acquired via condemnation action of any kind

Specific projects or actions identified as mitigation as part of a habitat conservation plan approved by the federal government for
incidental take of endangered or threatened species or other projects identified for habitat mitigation purposes

Healthy Communities and Parks Fund Background

HCPF is one of four grant programs created by the 2020 – 2025 Parks levy, which allocates approximately $110 million through the life of

the levy to funding these grant programs.

Click here to view previously awarded projects. < https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:x:/t/DNRPa/EblyXNEzP5tMjc_NsSUXYrwBJ0jS-

pSZ6tjgvfJVWlA6-A?e=8sEw7O>

Youth and Amateur Sports Grants Program Summary < >

Youth and Amateur Sports Grants Purpose

Youth and Amateur Sports Grants (YASG) supports fit and healthy communities by investing in programs and capital facility projects that

increase access to sports, play, and outdoor recreation.

The most competitive applications will focus on increasing access to youth furthest from play equity--youth of color, immigrant and

refugee youth, youth qualifying for reduced price lunch, youth with disabilities, girls, and youth living in unincorporated areas of King

County.

Award recommendations must be approved by King County Department of Natural Resource and Parks.

The YASG program has: ~$3.5 million in available funding in 2025; a maximum award amount of $100,000 for programs and $250,000

for construction; an application in 2024 and 2026

Award Details: Up to $2 million will be award to Construction project proposals and up to $1.5 million will be awarded to Program project

proposals.

Eligible Organizations

City or Town

Nonprofit Organization

Tribal Organization

Fiscally-sponsored Organization

Public School Districts



Page 8 of 12

Park Districts

Public Agencies

Eligible Project Types

Construction

Programs

Examples of Possible Projects

Below are examples of eligible project costs that may be funded. This list is not all-inclusive. All grant applicants for this program must
ensure that public access is provided.

Construction

New sport/recreation facility

Renovation or repair of an existing recreational facility

Conversion of an existing grass soccer field to turf field

Programs

Aquatic Classes

Exercise and Fitness Classes

Individual and Team Sports

Outdoor Recreation

Projects Not Funded by This Program

Projects that do not align with the goals of this grant program may include, but are not limited to:

Construction

Non-recreation related infrastructure within a multi-use community center

Design, permits, and contingency funds are not eligible expenses

Programs

Before/After School Clubs that do not have a focus on youth physical activity, including: Arts education, chess, robotics competitions

Community Gardens

Youth and Amateur Sports Grants Background

YASG was established in 1993 and is funded by a 1% sales tax on car rentals. To date, the fund has awarded over 500 grants totaling $28

million.

Click here to view previously awarded projects. < https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:x:/t/DNRPa/EblyXNEzP5tMjc_NsSUXYrwBJ0jS-

pSZ6tjgvfJVWlA6-A?e=8sEw7O> 

Timelines < >

Below are the anticipated timelines for the 2025 grant programs:



Levy Grants: Aquatics, PCOS, OSRC, and HCPF Tier 2

February 24 to April 3: Applications open in the Parks Grant Portal < https://www.grantinterface.com/Home/Logon?

urlkey=kingcountyparks>

Submission Deadline: Thursday, April 3 at 9:00 a.m. PST

April to June: Review by Levy Advisory Committees

July to October: Approval by DNRP, King County Executive, and King County Council

October to December: Contracting

HCPF Tier 1

February 24 to April 3: Applications open in the Parks Grant Portal < https://www.grantinterface.com/Home/Logon?

urlkey=kingcountyparks>

Submission Deadline: Thursday, April 3 at 9:00 a.m. PST

April to June: Review by Parks and HCPF Tier 1 Evaluators

June to July: Approval by DNRP

July to September: Contracting

YASG

April 7 to May 5: Applications open in the Parks Grant Portal < https://www.grantinterface.com/Home/Logon?urlkey=kingcountyparks>

Submission Deadline: Monday, May 5 at 9:00 a.m. PST

May to June: Review by Parks and Evaluators

June to July: Approval by DNRP

July to September: Contracting

Applying for a Grant < >

The Application Process

Applicants should:

1. Join the Parks Grants email list < https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/WAKING/subscriber/new?topic_id=WAKING_1596> to stay
up to date on Parks grants and other opportunities. This is a two-step process that requires confirmation after sign up.

2. Attend an information session to learn about each grant program and ask questions.

3. Connect with a Parks Grants Manager. Attend Office Hours or email ParksGrants@kingcounty.gov <
mailto:email%20ParksGrants@kingcounty.gov>  and identify the grant program(s) of interest.

Applicants must:

4. Create an account or log in to the Parks Grant Portal < https://www.grantinterface.com/Home/Logon?urlkey=kingcountyparks> , where
applications are submitted. Tutorials are listed on the right side of the log-in screen.

5. Begin application after it opens on Monday, February 24, 2025 for Levy Grants and Monday, April 7, 2025 for YASG applicants.

6. Submit complete application via Parks Grant Portal by Thursday, April 3, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. for Levy Grants and Monday, May 5, 2025 at
9:00 a.m. for YASG applicants. Incomplete, late, or emailed < >  applications will not be accepted. < >



Page 10 of 12

Application Previews

Application previews are available to help applicants prepare for online submission in the Parks Grant Portal. Application questions and

length vary by grant program.

Click here to view and download application previews. <

https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:f:/t/DNRPa/EkHFBM66EgJGoH2TWEh6T3ABAz4ZJBrKh_uS1CQBNEdylg?e=ZlhYA6>

Grant Evaluation < >

The Evaluation Process

There are separate groups that evaluate grant applications and make award recommendations for each grant program. Reviewers from a
variety of organizations and agencies bring expertise and a diversity of perspectives to the evaluation process. Learn more about the
Advisory Committees here < https://kingcounty.gov/en/dept/dnrp/nature-recreation/parks-recreation/king-county-parks/grants/levy-
grant-advisory-committees> .

The Aquatic Facilities and Parks Capital & Open Space Advisory Committee includes representatives from: City/Park Districts, School
Districts, and Nonprofit Organizations

The Open Space - River Corridors Advisory Committee includes representatives from: Cities, Tribal Organizations, Nonprofit and
Community Organizations, Special Flood Districts, and Salmon Recovery Forms.

The Healthy Communities and Parks Fund – Tier 1 Review Panel includes representatives from King County Staff.

The Healthy Communities and Parks Fund – Tier 2 Advisory Committee includes representatives from: City/Park Districts; Open Space
Equity Cabinet < https://kingcounty.gov/en/legacy/services/environment/water-and-land/land-
conservation/equity/openspace/equity-cabinet-report> ; Nonprofit Organizations; and Community Organizations.

Youth and Amateur Sports Grant Reviewers include representatives from: King County Play Equity Coalition  <
https://kcplayequity.org/> Members and King County staff.

Evaluation Criteria

Each application section is worth a portion of the total score.

Project Overview (50% of score): Describe the proposed project’s intent, alignment with grant program goals, and outcomes. Highlight
the project goals and which aspects of the project this grant would support.

Equity and Social Justice (40% of score): Demonstrate how the project addresses disparities through intentional planning, community
involvement, and strategic partnerships.

Budget and Resources (10% of score): Provide a budget that is complete, accurate, and aligns with stated project goals.

Click here to learn more about the evaluation criteria for each grant program. <
https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:f:/t/DNRPa/EkHFBM66EgJGoH2TWEh6T3ABAz4ZJBrKh_uS1CQBNEdylg?e=ZlhYA6>

Applicant Resources < >

Information Sessions

King County Parks is hosting information sessions about these grants, procedures, and policies. Click below to view details and register:

Tuesday, February 25 (11 a.m. to 12 p.m.): Register on Zoom < https://kingcounty.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_IFZcT-

4HSMCLkkTW_5PJhg>

Tuesday, March 11 (2 p.m. to 3 p.m.): Register on Zoom < https://kingcounty.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_tlfLGetsQxWpQ-

0Nq47OQA>

YASG ONLY - Tuesday, April 15 (11 a.m. to 12 p.m.): Register on Zoom < https://kingcounty.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_aVx91y-

5TiSTqJR84v2GIQ>



Grant Application Consulting

Grant application consulting is available at no cost for eligible small and emerging organizations, defined as having fewer than 20 full-time

equivalent (FTE) staff and an operating budget of less than $4 million in the prior fiscal year.) Consultants can:

Assist in determining appropriate fit between your proposal and the RFA

Provide guidance on how best to answer questions

Support application review, including editing and budget review

Requests for grant application consulting services will be accepted beginning January 3, 2024. The link will be posted on the Parks Grants

website. Requests for grant application consulting services for Levy Grants will be accepted until Monday, March 17 or for YASG applicants

until Monday, April 21.

Office Hours

Parks staff will be available to answer applicant questions during office hours on:

Levy Grants - Wednesdays from February 26 to April 2 from 12 p.m. to 12:45 p.m.

Download the calendar invitation <

https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:u:/t/DNRPa/ESONil9youtDip6mHvOCp4oBKJP7VJYP8mswcLZZeFEYgA?e=RAitph>  or join a meeting

in progress < https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-

join/19%3ameeting_M2E3ZWY4YzAtMDY3Mi00OGI4LWEyMGQtYzFjY2MyYmM5MjJk%40thread.v2/0?

context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22bae5059a-76f0-49d7-9996-72dfe95d69c7%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2249fdeaf4-5e12-

4ad1-97c8-255defe1d775%22%7d> .

YASG - Wednesdays from April 9 to April 30 from 12 p.m. to 12:45 p.m.

Download the calendar invitation < https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:u:/t/DNRPa/EV7HlZBzs6JOhDx4-

vaDOPEBmgkrzmAXDogGnASGg5h5WA?e=duI5d9>  or join a meeting in progress < https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-

join/19%3ameeting_NTAzMTk1MGEtNjBiZS00MjRmLWI5OWItZmQ3OTc5MzEzNmM0%40thread.v2/0?

context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22bae5059a-76f0-49d7-9996-72dfe95d69c7%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2249fdeaf4-5e12-

4ad1-97c8-255defe1d775%22%7d> .

Grantee Toolkit

The Grantee Toolkit < https://kc1.sharepoint.com/:w:/t/DNRPa/EbNjB7itXqpNvnjAh8_D7SwBM4Ft4ebVqCo4Jd9IxOdnIQ?e=CSYcgI>

 helps grantees navigate their awards. Review this information before submitting an application to understand requirements related to:

Contracting

Insurance

Invoicing

Reporting and Monitoring

Public Acknowledgements of Grants

Note: Grantees are notified of project-specific requirements prior to contracting.

Contact Parks Grants < >

The Parks Grants staff is here for you! Contact us if you need help understanding:

Which grant to apply for

Eligible organizations and projects

Partnership opportunities

Application questions

How applications are evaluated

How to request technical assistance, translation, or accommodations



Page 12 of 12

Related Topics

Any details of our grant programs

ParksGrants@kingcounty.gov < mailto:ParksGrants@kingcounty.gov>

(206) 848-0699

 

Add a short title here
Add descriptive language here to draw the attention of your site visitors. You can add an
optional call-to-action link here, as well.



Print 1/28/2025 
 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:_7f Assigned to: District GM/ Cap & Contracts  Meeting Date: 3/25/2025  
 
Under: New Business              Attachment:     Yes           No ___X______ 
 
Subject: Engineer (Architect) of Record 
 
 
Background/Summary:   
The Board of the Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District passed Resolution 2024-10 MRSC 
Small Public Works at the December 10, 2024, regular board meeting.  
 
MRSC Rosters legally functions as the Small Works Roster for its agency members, which 
include the pool district. 
 
Per section 4 of the Resolution: Consulting Services Roster. The District shall use the MRSC 
Rosters Consultant Roster to meet the requirements of RCW 39.80.030 when soliciting 
Architectural, Engineering and Land Surveying services and may use the process for other 
Consulting Services at the discretion of the District General Manager (Director of Aquatic 
Operations) … 
 
The firm deemed most highly qualified by the agency to do the project will be selected for 
contract negotiations. 
 
The District General Manager met with the Capital and Contracts Committee on Wednesday, 
March 12. At the meeting, it was decided to put the projects on hold, until it was determined if 
the pool district could work with the Highline School District to provide an engineer of record for 
the project. 
 
Future direction will be determined by the meeting with the Highline School District. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: All funds for this project should be covered by the $1.438 million Best Starts for 
Kids Grant, and an additional $213 thousand for the KC Parks Aquatic Facilities Grant. All 2025 
fees for this grant project for the engineer of record will be covered. 
 
Proposed Motion: No motion. Informational only. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes  X    No___ ____ Date:_Various ____      
 
 
Three Touch Rule:       N/A            Committee Review 
    ___12/10/24_____First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          _    To Be Determined  Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:       Adopted______          Rejected_______           Postponed________ 



Print 1/28/2025 
 

 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes X             No_______ Report back date: N/A 
 
  
Notes:   Attachments: 
               - No attachments. 



 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:  7g      Assigned to: District G.M.      Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under:    Old Business                           Attachment:     Yes   
 
Subject: Employee Handbook (Editable Draft Handout) 
 
Background/Summary:  
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District needs to update its Employee Handbook. In 
2019, we last had our major update to our handbook.  
 
Heartland helped us originally setup our employee handbook, and their sales had offered to help 
us with consulting our human resources including updating our employment handbook. During 
the pandemic, the pool district tried to update the handbook, and Heartland said they could 
create a new handbook from scratch, but it would not contain state specific and agency specific 
information for our district. 
 
I spoke with legal, and they recommended using Tukwila Pool District’s employee handbook, as 
our legal had reviewed it. This would save us on legal fees and include pool district legal 
information. The employee handbook was put together by one of their board members. 
 
Attached is an updated version of the employee handbook. The District General Manager will 
also send out an editable document, the morning of Wednesday, March 26. Please send all 
edits in to the District General Manager by Wednesday, April 14 at noon. 
 
UPDATE: I received comments from legal to add expanded Paid Family Medical Leave Act and 
Minor Work (FMLA) sections. Both are attached and will be added to the employee handbook 
draft for edits. This may affect when it is sent out for updates. An update will be announced at 
the meeting. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
 
Proposed Motion:  
No motion. Informational only. First touch. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes X        No___ ____ Date:   3/20/25  
 
Three Touch Rule:                              Committee Review 
    ___02/25/2025_____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ___04/22/2025 ______ Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  No ___ x ____ Report back date: ___________  
 



 

Notes:  
- 2025 Employee Handbook -PRELIMINARY DRAFT (attached) 
- Expanded Paid Family Medical Leave Act from Legal (attached) 
- PDF on Minor Work Regulations (attached) 
 





























































































































1 
 

Family Medical Leave Act Policy 

1. Purpose. The purpose of this Policy is to summarize Employee rights under the Washington 
Paid Family Medical Leave Act (PFMLA), the Federal Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 
and the Pregnancy Disability Leave rules set forth in WAC 162.30.020 (PDL). The 
Washington Family Leave Act (PFMLA) provides for paid leave through the Washington State 
Employment Security Department for specified family and medical reasons. PFMLA leave 
runs concurrently with, the leave under the Federal Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), and 
also provides for additional leave for a disability due to pregnancy and for leave to care for 
registered domestic partners. With the adoption of paid leave under the WFMLA, the rules and 
regulations of the PFMLA will govern most employee family and medical leave requests.  In 
situations where the FMLA provides greater benefits or options, the employee is entitled to the 
most protective benefit.   

2. Unpaid Leave. The paid PFMLA leave benefits set forth below require a seven day waiting 
period. The District will grant employees eligible for PFMLA leave under this policy with 
seven days of unpaid leave during this waiting period.  Employees shall have the option of 
using available sick or vacation leave for all or a portion of the seven day unpaid leave period. 

3. Paid Benefits.  Financial benefits under the PFMLA are managed by the Washington State 
Employment Security Department and governed by Employment Security rules and 
regulations. This Policy is focused primarily on Employee’s right to take leave from work with 
the District. 

4. Definitions. 

4.1. Employee shall include all part time paid and full time paid employees of the District and 
elected or appointed commissioners that have worked 820 hours in the first four of the last 
five or the last four quarters of employment (for any Washington employer). 

5. PFMLA Leave Availability. Eligible employees are entitled to take up to 12 weeks of medical 
or family leave, or a combined total of 16 weeks of family and medical leave per claim year; 
an additional two weeks of leave may be available in the event the employee’s leave involves 
incapacity due to the pregnancy. The claim year begins when the employee files a claim for 
PFML benefits or upon the birth/placement of the employee’s child. PFML leave may be taken 
for the following reasons: 

5.1. Medical Leave: Medical leave may be taken due to the employee’s own serious health 
condition, which is an illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental condition that 
involves inpatient care or continuing treatment by a health care provider, as those terms 
are defined under the FMLA and RCW 50A.05.010. However, an employee is not eligible 
for PFML benefits if the employee is receiving time loss benefits under the workers 
compensation system. 

5.2. Family Leave: Family leave may be taken to care for a covered family member with a 
serious health condition; for bonding during the first 12 months following the birth of the 



2 
 

employee’s child or placement of a child under age 18 with the employee (through 
adoption or foster care); or for qualifying military exigencies as defined under the FMLA. 

5.3. PFML runs concurrently with FMLA where an absence is covered by both laws. PFML 
leave may be taken intermittently, provided there is a minimum claim requirement of eight 
consecutive hours of leave in a week for which benefits are sought. 

6. Military Family Caregiver Leave:  The FMLA entitles eligible employees to a total of 26 
weeks of unpaid military family caregiver leave during a 12-month period to care for a covered 
service member who is the spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin of the employee. (See 
29 CFR 825) 

7. Eligibility for Leave.  

7.1. PFMLA is available to Employees beginning seven consecutive calendar days following 
the day the Employee takes their first 8 hour day of leave, except the seven day waiting 
period is not required for PFMLA taken for the birth or placement of a child. 

7.2. PFMLA leave taken to care for a newborn or newly adopted son or daughter, as set must 
be completed within 12 months of the son’s or daughter's birth or placement for adoption, 
except as provided under the PFMLA in cases in which the pregnant mother is disabled 
due to childbirth.  

7.3. If planned medical treatment is required, the Employee must make a reasonable effort to 
schedule treatment so as not to unduly disrupt District operations. 

7.4. Employees will continue to receive medical, dental, long term disability and life insurance 
benefits, during any paid (by virtue of an employee’s use of sick leave or other leave) or 
unpaid portion of PFMLA leave; provided, employees shall be required to continue to pay 
their contribution for such benefits. 

7.5. During PFMLA leave, employees will not earn sick or vacation leave benefits or seniority. 
Employees on an intermittent or reduced leave schedule will earn sick or vacation leave 
benefits on a prorated basis, proportional to the percentage of time that they work. 

7.6. Sick, vacation, comp and holiday leave are designated as a supplemental benefit by the 
District as defined by the Washington State Employment Security Department (ESD). 

7.7. Employees may use such available leave to remain on paid status even if the employee 
also seek PFML benefits in the same week.  The employee cannot utilize benefits in a way 
that exceeds 100% of their regular salary or wages. 

8. Pregnancy Disability Leave. The District provides pregnancy leave in compliance with WAC 
162.30.020.  

8.1. Eligible employees are entitled to use any period of time medically necessary for 
pregnancy related conditions including, but not limited to, related medical conditions, 
miscarriage, pregnancy termination, and complications of pregnancy.  



3 
 

8.2. PDL is limited solely to the disability phase of the pregnancy and childbirth and provides 
no entitlement to time to care for a newborn child. PDL will run concurrently with PFMLA 
leave. 

8.3.  A physician’s statement may be required to verify the time allotted to pregnancy disability 
during leave, in accordance with District policies regarding sick or disability leave. 

8.4. PDL is unpaid leave, but Employees may use any type of accrued leave while on PDL 
which shall be used as a supplemental benefit if also on PFML. In the event accrued leave 
is exhausted while an employee is on PDL, such leave will be unpaid leave. 

8.5. Employees requiring PDL will not earn sick or vacation leave benefits or seniority during 
such PDL but shall continue to receive to receive medical, dental, long term disability and 
life insurance benefits, provided, employees shall be required to continue to pay their 
contribution for such benefits. 

9. Notice Requirements. 

9.1. Unless otherwise provided herein, notices of the need for PFMLA leave shall be in writing 
and shall be directed to the Fire Chief or Designee. The notice must set forth the reason 
for the leave, the anticipated duration of the leave, and the anticipated start of the leave. 
When initial verbal notice is permitted, it shall be followed by written notice as soon as 
practicable, which generally shall be within the next business day. 

9.2. An Employee must provide the District with at least 30 days advance notice before 
PFMLA leave is to begin if the need for leave is foreseeable. The need for leave is 
foreseeable if it is based on an expected birth, placement for adoption or foster care, 
planned medical treatment for a serious health condition of the Employee, or the 
Employee’s spouse, son, daughter or parent. If 30 days’ notice is not practicable, notice 
must be given as soon as practicable, which generally will mean the day it becomes 
practicable or the next business day. If the Employee fails to give timely advance notice 
as provided herein, PFMLA protected leave may be delayed or denied. 

9.3. When the time for the need for PFMLA leave is not foreseeable, such as in an emergency, 
the Employee must provide notice of the need for PFMLA leave as soon as practicable. 
Initial notice may be verbal, and in the case of an Employee’s serious health condition or 
when the employee is otherwise unavailable, may be made by a representative of the 
employee. 

10. Confirmation of Leave. 

10.1. The District will process PFMLA claims in accordance with state requirements, 
and employees shall be required to cooperate with the District’s process.  

10.2. The District may require that requests for PFMLA leave be supported by 
certification issued by a health care provider. Such certification shall be provided to the 
Fire Chief or designee within 15 days of the date it is requested, unless it is not practicable 



4 
 

to do so under the circumstances. Failure to provide certification may result in a delay or 
denial of PFMLA protected leave. 

10.3. It will be the District’s responsibility to advise the Employee whether medical 
certification will be required when the employee requests leave. 

10.4. It will be the Employee's responsibility to provide the medical certification in a 
timely manner as requested by the District. 

10.5. Under certain circumstances, the District may request a clarification of a medical 
certification, or at its expense, obtain an opinion from a second health care provider (of 
the department’s choosing) or third health care provider (chosen jointly by the employee 
and the District) regarding a medical condition. 

10.6. While on PFMLA leave, the District may require periodic reports regarding an 
Employee’s status and date for return to work. The District may also require subsequent 
re-certification of the need for continued leave. 

10.7. In certain situations, the Employee may need to take leave intermittently or on a 
reduced leave schedule. If the request is to take family leave on an intermittent or reduced 
leave schedule basis, the District may require that the Employee provide a medical 
certification by a qualified health care provider which states that such intermittent leave 
or reduced leave is medically necessary. If the Employee requests and is granted such 
leave, he or she may be required to transfer temporarily to an available alternate position 
with equivalent pay and benefits that more effectively accommodates intermittent periods 
of leave or a reduced work schedule. 

11. Reemployment/Job Protection. 

11.1. Upon completion of leave, the employee will be entitled to return to the same 
position as when the leave began or to a substantially similar position with equivalent job 
skills, status, pay and benefits.  

11.2. Reinstatement is not required if one or more of the following conditions exists: the 
position was eliminated by a bona fide restructuring or reduction in force; the position was 
for a specified period, and the period has concluded; the employee takes another job while 
on leave; or the employee fails to return from the leave at the conclusion of the eligible 
leave period.  

 



Teens at Work: Facts for 
Employers, Parents and Teens
This brochure covers all industries other than agriculture.

This brochure answers many questions employers, 
teen workers and parents have about non-agricultural 
work rules, permits and conditions for working 
minors, including teens working in their family’s 
non-agricultural business.

What does an employer have to do to 
hire minors?

Post a current Minor Work Permit endorsement

Employers need a Minor Work Permit endorsement on 
their business license for each work site where they employ 
minors. They can apply to get one with the business license 
application through the Department of Revenue’s Business 
Licensing Services (www.dor.wa.gov/manage-business/
state-endorsements/minor-work-permit) or any L&I office. 
The business license with current Minor Work Permit 
endorsement must be posted and renewed every year.

Keep specific information on file for each 
minor worker

An employer must have the information below about 
each minor worker on file at the minor’s work site and 
maintain these records for three years from the last 
date of the minor’s employment:

Proof of age

The date of birth must be supported by proof:

 � Driver’s license.

 � Birth certificate.

 � Passport.

 � Baptismal record.

 � Notarized statement of a parent or guardian.

Job description

The job description must include a complete 
description of duties.

A Parent/School Authorization form

If the student is working during the school year, a 
Parent/School Authorization form must be completed 
by the employer and kept on file at the minor’s work 
site. The employer must complete this form before 
obtaining signatures from the employee, parent/
guardian and school representative. The employer 
needs to renew this form every school year by Sept. 30, 
or when the minor’s schedule changes. If the minor 
has their General Education Diploma (GED) or high 
school diploma or is home schooled, parents may 
certify this on the form.

Parents and schools may adjust the minor’s work 
schedule if academic performance or attendance is 
suffering due to working too many hours.

A Parent Authorization for Summer Work form is 
required for minors who are hired during summer 
break only.

What is the minimum age to work?
Youth must be 14 years old to work at non-agricultural 
jobs. A child younger than 14 can work if the employer 
completes the Court Form Granting Permission and 
Employer Petition to the Court forms (available from 
L&I) and has them signed by a superior court judge in 
the county where the minor lives.

Upon request, foreign language support and formats for persons 
with disabilities are available. Call 1-800-547-8367. TDD users, 
call 711. L&I is an equal opportunity employer.



What is the minimum wage for minor workers?
The minimum wage for 16– and 17-year-old workers 
is the same as for adults. Minors under 16 may be paid 
85% of the state minimum wage. Find out more at: 
www.Lni.wa.gov/Wages .

What about meal and rest breaks?
Fourteen– and 15-year-old workers may not work more 
than four hours without a 30-minute uninterrupted 
meal period. The meal period must be separate from, 
and in addition to, rest breaks. These minors must be 
provided a paid rest break of at least 10 minutes for 
every two hours worked. When working a four-hour 
period, they cannot be required to work more than 
two hours without either a 10-minute rest break or a 
30-minute meal period.

Sixteen– and 17-year-old workers are entitled to an 
uninterrupted meal period of at least 30 minutes for 
every five hours of work. These meal periods must 
start no less than two hours but no more than five 
hours from the beginning of their work shift. These 
minors are entitled to at least a 10-minute paid rest 
break for each four hours worked. They must receive a 
rest break at least every three hours.

What about paid sick leave?
Paid sick leave must be provided for most employees, 
including workers under the age of 18. Eligible 
employees must earn one hour of paid sick leave for 
every 40 hours they work. They may begin using 
it after 90 days of employment. Find out more at: 
www.Lni.wa.gov/SickLeave .

When can 16– and 17-year-olds work 
extra hours?
If there is “good cause” why a 16– or 17-year-old needs 
to work more hours per week than shown on the back 
page, the employer can apply for a variance.

Special variance — up to 28 hours per week

Many older teens have a reduced school schedule 
or have shown that they are able to work additional 
hours on top of their school schedule and 
extracurricular activities. The parents and the public 
or private school can grant permission to work up 

to eight extra hours during the school week. They 
must complete the special variance section of the 
Parent/School Authorization form. This does not apply to 
homeschooled students.

Regular variance — more than 28 hours per week

If the extra hours provided by the special variance 
are not enough, or if the minor does not qualify for 
the special variance, the employer can request a 
regular variance.

Theatrical variance

Youth may be employed as actors, performers or 
models in film, video, audio or theatrical productions 
in Washington State under certain conditions. 
These conditions apply if the minor is working 
in Washington — regardless of where they live. In 
most cases, employers must complete and submit a 
Theatrical Minor Work Variance Application to L&I.

No work for minors during school hours

Minors are prohibited from working during the hours that 
their neighborhood school is in session. For example, if 
the neighborhood school website shows that school is 
in session from 8 a.m. to 3 p.m., the minor may not work 
between those hours. This also applies to homeschooled 
minors and those not enrolled in school. If an employer 
wants a minor to work during school hours, the employer 
must apply for a variance.

Are there exemptions for hours of work?
A 16– or 17-year-old may work non-school hours 
during the school year if he/she is:

 � Married.

 � A parent.

 � Registered in accredited college course(s), 
including Running Start.

 � Emancipated by court order.

Minors who have a high school diploma or GED may 
also work non-school hours during the school year.



Prohibited work for teens

Some jobs are potentially hazardous for young 
workers. Washington State and federal laws spell 
out which jobs are prohibited.

All minors under 18 are prohibited from 
doing the following work in any industry 
(refer to WAC 296-125-030 for more detail):

Restaurants, delis and grocery stores

 � Operating meat slicers or powered bakery 
equipment such as a Hobart mixer.

 � Regular driving of motor vehicles to make 
deliveries, such as pizza delivery. (No driving 
on public roads for those 16 or under.)

 � Working at heights greater than 10 feet off the 
ground or floor level.

 � Loading, operating or unloading of paper 
balers and compactors.

 � Work in freezers (occasional entry not 
prohibited), meat coolers and in preparing 
meats for sale. Wrapping, sealing, labeling, 
weighing, pricing and stocking is permitted 
if work is performed away from meat-cutting 
and preparation areas.

 � Slaughtering, meatpacking or food processing.

 � Working alone past 8 p.m. without supervision 
by someone 18 years or older who is on the 
premises at all times, in service occupations.

Construction and related activities

 � Roofing — All work on or around a roof.

 � Working at heights greater than 10 feet off the 
ground or floor level.

 � Driving, or working near, a forklift.

 � Wrecking and demolition.

 � Hoists and cranes.

 � Flagging and work on roadways.

 � Trenching or excavating.

 � Boilers or in engine rooms.

 � Power-driven woodworking or 
metal-forming machines.

 � Earth-moving machines or working in 
proximity to earth-moving machines.

 � Explosives and mining.

Other prohibited duties

 � 17-year-olds may drive only under very 
limited circumstances.

 � Firefighting.

 � Logging and sawmill work.

 � Selling candy, flowers or other items to 
motorists on a public roadway.

 � Manufacturing of brick, tile and similar products.

 � Jobs where exposures require the use of 
respiratory protection or hearing protection.

 � Nurses’ aide or nurses’ assistant, unless the 
minor is in or has completed a state-certified 
training program.

 � Jobs with possible exposure to bodily fluids, 
or radioactive and hazardous substances.

Additional prohibited duties for minors under 
age 16 (WAC 296-125-033)

 � House-to-house sales.

 � Cooking and baking.

 � Any power-driven machinery.

 � Construction.

 � Manufacturing.

 � Commercial packing and processing 
operations.

 � Public messenger.

 � Amusement park rides.

 � Loading or unloading trucks.

 � Transportation, warehouse, storage and work 
around conveyors.

 � Any work above ground, including ladders.

 � Maintenance and repair in gas stations.





 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:  8a      Assigned to: District G.M.      Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under:    New Business                           Attachment:     Yes   
 
Subject: Electronic Funds Transfer Policy (first touch) 
 
Background/Summary:  
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District is increasingly using electronic funds transfers, 
wire transfers and ACH to pay bills including payroll and electric and gas bills. It is expected the 
district will use these processes more, as some agencies are pivoting towards more electronic 
payments. 
 
Attached is a proposed policy for review by the board. 
 
An editable copy will be sent out on Wednesday, March 26. Please have all edits back by 
Tuesday, April 15. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
 
Proposed Motion:  
No motion. Informational only. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes X        No___ ____ Date:      In Process       
 
Three Touch Rule:                              Committee Review 
    ___Continuous_____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ___N/A ______ Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  No ___ x ____ Report back date: ___________  
 
Notes:  
- 531 Electronic Funds Transfer Policy (attached) 
 

















 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:  8b      Assigned to: District G.M.      Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under:    New Business                           Attachment:     Yes   
 
Subject: Bitwarden Password Software 
 
Background/Summary:  
The Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District has limited staff that have access to different 
software portals. Since the start of the pandemic, the pool district has increased turnover of staff 
and there have been increased cyber-attacks. 
 
The proposed software would not only allow staff to better manage their passwords for external 
sites, but also be monitored by CMIT, which could come in handy when there is changeover. 
 
We will be back up to five full-time staff by this summer and will need a sixth license for the 
shared District Clerk computer. Each license is $6/month, with a total of $72/license/year or 
$432 (NTE $500 budgeted) total to be added to the budget. 
 
Note-Other password software has been hacked, but Bitwarden has not (according to CMIT). 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: $500 to line item, IT services.  
 
Proposed Motion:  
I move to approve the addition of Bitwarden to the Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District’s 
workstations not to exceed $500. 
 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes         No___ X____ Date:    
 
Three Touch Rule:                              Committee Review 
    ___03/25/2025_____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ___04/22/2025 (if necessary) Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  No ___ ____ Report back date: ___________  
 
Notes:  
- Bitwarden info sheet (attached) 
 





Trusted security

Your private information is protected with end-to-end encryption before it ever leaves your device.

Open source transparency

Bitwarden source code, features, and infrastructure security are vetted and improved by our global community.

Global access

Access Bitwarden from anywhere, with any platform, in over 50 languages.

Customize and control password requirements and administrative policies that will empower employees to practice good password 
hygiene.

Enterprise password management that scales with your business

Empower your team and eliminate vulnerabilities

Secure and trusted open source password manager for business

© 2025 Bitwarden Inc   |   Page 2 of 7



Monitor and manage security vulnerabilities using the Bitwarden Vault Health Reports with actionable insights to exposed, reused, weak, 
or potentially compromised passwords, as well as identify any items in your vault with inactive 2FA.

Secure cloud syncing features allow you and your team to access vault data from anywhere, on any device.

A trusted way to securely share information directly with anyone. 

Bitwarden Send

Easily transmit text or files including passwords, billing credentials, or business documents fully encrypted.

Share sensitive data within your Bitwarden Vault from any browser, mobile device, or desktop application.

Set deletion times ensure your information does not stick around.

Secure and trusted open source password manager for business

© 2025 Bitwarden Inc   |   Page 3 of 7



Bitwarden for Business Feature Highlights

Feature Description

Login with SSO
Leverage your existing Identity Provider to authenticate your Bitwarden Organization users via 
SAML 2.0 or OpenID Connect (OIDC).

Role Based Access Control
Assign role-based access for Organization users, including a custom role and granular 
permissions (e.g. Hide Passwords, Read-Only).

Directory Sync
Use SCIM support or the Directory Connector to streamline user and group provisioning and 
maintain synchronization with your directory service.

Web Application Fully encrypted cloud web app at https://vault.bitwarden.com.

Secure and trusted open source password manager for business

© 2025 Bitwarden Inc   |   Page 4 of 7



Feature Description

Mobile Apps Available for iOS and Android.

CLI Fully featured and self-documented command-line tool.

2FA at Organization-level Enable 2FA via Duo for your entire Organization.

Biometric Authentication

- Android (fingerprint unlock or face unlock) and iOS (Touch ID and Face ID)

- Windows Desktop Apps (Windows Hello using PIN, Facial Recognition, and more) and 
macOS Desktop Apps (Touch ID)

- Chromium, Firefox 87+, and Safari Browser Extensions 

Account Recovery 
Administration

Designated administrators can reset users' Master Password and recover accounts.

Enterprise Policies Enforce security rules for all users, for example mandating use of Two-step Login.

Event Logs
Get time stamped records of events that occur within your Organization Vault for easy use in 
the Web Vault or ingestion by other systems.

Programmatically Accessible Public and Private APIs for Organizations.

Command Line Interface Fully featured and self-documented command-line tool.

Extensibility Support Automate workflows by combining API and CLI.

Third-party Security Audits
Audited by third party security firms, with published reports available at 
https://bitwarden.com/compliance/

Secure and trusted open source password manager for business

© 2025 Bitwarden Inc   |   Page 5 of 7



GDPR

Bitwarden complies with GDPR and current applicable EU data protection rules. In addition, Bitwarden uses and complies with EU 
Standard Contractual Clauses (SCCs).

Data Privacy Framework (DPF)

Bitwarden complies with the Data Privacy Framework (DPF), previously called Privacy Shield, which defines the safe transfer of personal 
data

HIPAA

Bitwarden is officially HIPAA-compliant after receiving a HIPAA Security Rule Assessment Report from AuditOne in December 2020.

CCPA

Bitwarden is compliant with the California Consumer Privacy Act (CCPA).

TAA

Bitwarden is compliant with the Trade Agreements Act (TAA).

Feature Description

Complimentary Families Plans 
for All Users

Employees can bring Bitwarden home for free to their families to practice good password 
security at home.

Compliance

Recommended by industry experts

Secure and trusted open source password manager for business

© 2025 Bitwarden Inc   |   Page 6 of 7





 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #:  8c      Assigned to: District G.M.      Meeting Date: March 25, 2025 
 
Under:    New Business                           Attachment:     Yes   
 
Subject: 50th Anniversary Celebration 
 
Background/Summary:  
The Mount Rainier Pool will be turning 50 years old on (Monday) September 15, 2025. The 
purpose of this AIS is to discuss planning for an event.  
 
If an event is to be held, the District General Manager recommends holding an event on 
Saturday, September 20. This would allow ample time away from the start of school when less 
participation occurs. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
 
Proposed Motion:  
No motion. Informational only. 
 
Reviewed by District Legal Counsel:      Yes        No___X ____ Date:      N/A      
 
Three Touch Rule:                              Committee Review 
    ___Continuous_____ First Board Meeting (Informational) 
          ___N/A ______ Second Board Meeting (Action) 
 
Action Taken:      Adopted         Rejected          Postponed 
 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes  No ___ x ____ Report back date: ___________  
 
Notes:  
- None 
 



 

Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
 

AGENDA ITEMS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Agenda Item #: 9       Assigned to: Clerk of the 

Board 
 Meeting 

Date: 
March 25, 2025 

 
Under: Meeting End  Attachment:           None 

 
Subject: Good of the Order 

 
Background/Summary:  
1. Good of the Order: Around the table for board and staff to share any updates outside of the 
regular business on the agenda. 
 

2. Next board meeting (unless special meeting scheduled): 
• SAO Exit Interview, Special Meeting (to be determined) 
• April 22, 2025, Regular “Hybrid” Board Meeting, 7:00 p.m., Location DMPMPD Office 

(22015 Marine Drive So. #2B, Des Moines, WA) 
 

3. End of Meeting:  
 
 
Fiscal Impact:  

 
Proposed Motion: No motion necessary. 

 
Reviewed by Legal Counsel:  Yes  No   Date: N/A 

 
Two Touch Rule:    N/A Committee Review 
    N/A  First Board Meeting (Informational) 
    N/A Second Board Meeting (Action) 

 
Action Taken:  Adopted   Rejected   Postponed  

 
Follow-up Needed:  Yes   No   Reporting Back Date:  

 
Notes:  
- No attachments. 
 


	000 AGENDA
	04a Proclamation - Adult LTS Month
	04b Filing Week (May 5-9)
	06a-g Consent Agenda
	07a Insurance Changeover Update
	07b Land Acquisition Process Update
	07c Highline School District Meeting Update
	07d Current Grants Update
	07e 2025 Grant Application
	07f Engineer (Architect) of Record
	07g Employee Handbook
	07g3 Minor Work Regulations
	07g2 Family Medical Leave Act Policy

	08a Electronic Funds Transfer Policy
	08b Bitwarden Password Software
	08c 50th Anniversary Celebration
	09 Good of the Order



